CHAMPAIGN COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING

Date: **July 16, 2015** Time: **7:00 P.M.**

Place: Lyle Shields Meeting Room

Brookens Administrative Center 1776 E. Washington Street

Urbana, IL 61802

Note: NO ENTRANCE TO BUILDING FROM WASHINGTON STREET PARKING LOT AFTER 4:30 PM.

Use Northeast parking lot via Lierman Ave. and enter building through Northeast door.

Note: The full ZBA packet is now available

on-line at: www.co.champaign.il.us.

If you require special accommodations please notify the Department of Planning & Zoning at (217) 384-3708

EVERYONE MUST SIGN THE ATTENDANCE SHEET -- ANYONE GIVING TESTIMONY MUST SIGN THE WITNESS FORM

AGENDA

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call and Declaration of Quorum

3. Correspondence

4. Approval of Minutes (May 14, 2015, May 28, 2015, June 11, 2015)

5. Continued Public Hearings

6. New Public Hearings

*Case 792-V-14 (REACTIVATED) Petitioner: Robert Frazier

Request: Authorize the following Variance from the Champaign County Zoning

Ordinance in the I-1 Light Industry Zoning District:

Part A. Variance for 48 on-site parking spaces in lieu of the minimum required 67 parking spaces as required by Section 7.4 of the Zoning Ordinance.

Part B. Variance for a setback of 50 feet and a front yard of 20 feet between the principal building and Tiffany Court in lieu of the minimum required setback of 55 feet and the minimum required front yard of 25 feet as required by Section 5.3 of the Zoning Ordinance.

Part C. Variance for parking 0 feet from the front property line in lieu of the minimum required 10 feet from the front property line as required by Section 7.4.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.

Part D. Variance for allowing at least 19 off-street parking spaces on an adjacent lot in lieu of requiring all off-street parking spaces to be located on the same lot or tract of land as the use served, as required by Section 7.4.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.

Location: Lot 4 of the Stahly Subdivision in the Southeast Quarter of Section 8 of Champaign Township and commonly known as the former LEX building

located at 310 Tiffany Court, Champaign.

7. Staff Report

8. Other Business

A. Review of Docket

B. September 24, 2015, meeting location or cancellation

9. Audience Participation with respect to matters other than cases pending before the Board

10. Adjournment

^{*} Administrative Hearing. Cross Examination allowed.

2 MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 3 CHAMPAIGN COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 4 1776 E. Washington Street 5 Urbana, IL 61802 6 7 DATE: May 14, 2015 PLACE: Lyle Shield's Meeting Room 8 1776 East Washington Street 18 TIME: 7:00 p.m. Urbana, IL 61802 Catherine Capel, Debra Griest, Marilyn Lee, Brad Passalacqua, Eric 11 **MEMBERS PRESENT:** 12 Thorsland 13 14 **MEMBERS ABSENT:** Jim Randol 15 16 **STAFF PRESENT:** Connie Berry, John Hall 17 18 **OTHERS PRESENT:** Lloyd N. Allen Sr., Caleb Burton, Keith Padgett, Andy Tunstall, Lawrence 19 Johnson 29 22 1. Call to Order 23 24 The meeting was called to order at 7:01 p.m. 25 26 2. Roll Call and Declaration of Quorum 27 28 The roll was called and a quorum declared present with one member absent and one vacant seat. 29 30 Mr. Thorsland informed the audience that anyone wishing to testify for any public hearing tonight must sign the witness register for that public hearing. She reminded the audience that when they sign the witness 31 32 register they are signing an oath. 33 34 3. Correspondence 35 DRAFT 36 None 37 38 4. Approval of Minutes (March 26, 2015) 39 40 Mr. Thorsland entertained a motion to approve the March 26, 2015, minutes. 41 42 Ms. Lee moved, seconded by Ms. Griest to approve the March 26, 2015, minutes as submitted. 43 44 Mr. Thorsland asked the Board if there were any corrections or additions to the minutes and there were 45 none. 46

47

48

The motion carried by voice vote.

5. <u>Continued Public Hearing</u>

1 2 3

4

5 6

7 8

9

10

11

12 13

14

15

16

17

18 19

Case 685-AT-11 Petitioner: Champaign County Zoning Administrator. Request to amend the Champaign County Zoning Ordinance by revising Section 6.1 by adding standard conditions required for any County Board approved special use permit for a Rural Residential Development in the Rural Residential Overlay district as follows: (1) require that each proposed residential lot shall have an area equal to the minimum required lot area in the zoning district that is not in the Special Flood Hazard Area; (2) require a new public street to serve the proposed lots in any proposed RRO with more than two proposed lots that are each less than five acres in area or any RRO that does not comply with the standard condition for minimum driveway separation; (3) require a minimum driveway separation between driveways in the same development; (4) require minimum driveway standards for any residential lot on which a dwelling may be more than 140 feet from a public street; (5) require for any proposed residential lot not served by a public water supply system and that is located in an area of limited groundwater availability or over a shallow sand and gravel aquifer other than the Mahomet Aquifer, that the petitioner shall conduct groundwater investigations and contract the services of the Illinois State Water Survey (ISWS) to conduct or provide a review of the results; (6) require for any proposed RRO in a high probability area as defined in the Illinois State Historic Preservation Agency (ISHPA) about the proposed RRO development undertaking and provide a copy of the ISHPA response; (7) require that for any proposed RRO that the petitioner shall contact the Endangered Species Program of the Illinois Department of Natural Resources and provide a copy of the agency response.

21 22 23

20

Mr. Thorsland asked the petitioner if he desired to make a statement outlining the nature of the request.

2425

Mr. Thorsland entertained a motion to continue Case 685-AT-15 to the August 13, 2015, meeting.

26 27

Ms. Lee moved, seconded by Ms. Griest to continue Case 685-AT-15 to the August 13, 2015, meeting. The motion carried by voice vote.

29 30 31

32

33

3435

36 37

28

Case 792-V-14 Petitioner: Robert Frazier Request to authorize the following Variance from the Champaign County Zoning Ordinance in the I-1 Light Industry Zoning District. Part A. Variance for 48 parking spaces as required by Section 7.4 of the Zoning Ordinance. Part B. Variance for a setback of 50 feet and a front yard of 20 feet between the principal building and Tiffany Court in lieu of the minimum required setback of 55 feet and the minimum required front yard of 25 feet as required by Section 5.3 of the Zoning Ordinance. Location: Lot 4 of the Stahly Subdivision in the Southeast Quarter of Section 8 of Champaign Township and commonly known as the former LEX building located at 310 Tiffany Court, Champaign.

Mr. Thorsland informed the Board that Robert Frazier, the petitioner, is not present. Mr. Thorsland stated 1 that four people have signed the witness register to present testimony although the petitioner is not present 2 and during the common order of events the petitioner is allowed to make a brief statement about their case 3 4 before the Board receives witness testimony. Mr. Thorsland stated that he does not believe that it is appropriate for the Board to take witness testimony without the petitioner being present because he should 5 have the opportunity to cross examine any witness. He said that during the last public hearing for this case 6 the Board provided a courtesy to the petitioner's tardiness and rearranged the docket to assure the 7 petitioner's presence and then rearranged the docket again when the petitioner walked into the meeting 8 9 room. Mr. Thorsland apologized to the witnesses that are in attendance tonight but in fairness to the petitioner he should be able to hear the testimony presented by any witness. Mr. Thorsland stated that he 10 will not apologize for the petitioner because it is his choice whether or not to attend the meeting. He said 11 that staff checked the office phones and no message from the petitioner was received. 12

13 14

Mr. Thorsland entertained a motion to continue Case 792-V-14.

15 16

17

18

Ms. Griest stated that she understands and appreciates Mr. Thorsland's comments, but with respect to the witnesses that have chosen to take time out of their day, would the Board serve the witnesses and the petitioner to rearrange the docket and allow the petitioner time to arrive. She said that if the petitioner has not arrived after the Board has completed Case 793-S-14 the Board could then continue Case 792-V-14.

19 20 21

Mr. Thorsland stated the petitioner may not arrive at all.

22 23

Mr. Passalacqua stated that he apologizes to the people who have signed the witness register to present testimony but it is not the Board's fault that the petitioner has not arrived.

242526

Mr. Lloyd Allen, who resides at 3222 Stoneybrook Drive, Champaign, asked the Board to indicate their policy when a petitioner chooses not to attend the public hearing.

272829

Mr. Thorsland stated that generally the Board will continue or dismiss the case.

30 31

32

Mr. Allen asked Mr. Thorsland why the Board would not dismiss the case since the petitioner has chosen not to notify staff of his absence or blatantly not attend the meeting tonight. He said that he does not understand why everyone else has to suffer due to Mr. Frazier's negligence.

33 34 35

36

Mr. Thorsland stated that the only reason why he would entertain a motion to continue the case rather than dismissing it is because the petitioner could have had a mishap or emergency which could have prevented him from notifying staff of his absence.

3*7* 38 39

Mr. Allen asked Mr. Thorsland to indicate the Board's policy regarding this issue.

Mr. Thorsland stated that the Champaign County Zoning Board of Appeals By-laws do address this issue.

Mr. Allen asked Mr. Thorsland if the By-laws are available for review.

Mr. Thorsland stated yes, and staff can provide a copy for his review.

Mr. Allen asked Mr. Thorsland how many times the Board will continue this case before it is dismissed. He said that the Board could continue this hearing until June and Mr. Frazier could not appear at that hearing either.

Mr. Thorsland stated that if Mr. Frazier fails to attend the continued hearing then the Board would vote to dismiss the case.

Mr. Allen stated that it appears that the decision should be very simple. He said that based on the information that the Board has been provided the request by Mr. Frazier does not apply to the request for the variance.

 Mr. Thorsland stated that the Board needs to decide whether to continue the case to a later date or dismiss the case. He said that he understands Mr. Allen's frustration and he understands the difference between a responsible person and someone who does not honor their commitments but the Board has to decide whether to continue the case to a later date or dismiss it. He said that the docket does not have room to continue this case to the next meeting.

Mr. Hall read Article 7.1.4 of the ZBA By-laws as follows: In the event that the petitioner fails to appear either in person or by agent, the case shall be deemed dismissed unless the Board shall vote otherwise. In such cases, the Petitioner shall be furnished with written notice of the dismissal by the Secretary of the Board. A petitioner may reactivate a dismissed case only upon filing a new petition and upon payment of the fee specified in Section 9.3.3(A)4 of the Zoning Ordinance. Such reactivated cases shall be noticed in the usual manner pursuant to Section 6.2 herein. Mr. Hall stated that in this instance the Supplemental Memorandum dated May 6, 2015, indicates that the case will require re-advertisement due to the substantial increase in the proposed variance. He said that if the case is continued and re-advertised the fee for that readvertisement is \$100. He said that if the case is dismissed a new case will need to be filed with an entirely new application fee of \$200. He said that in a case like this the case shall be deemed dismissed unless the Board votes otherwise.

Mr. Passalacqua moved, seconded by Ms. Capel to dismiss Case 792-V-14. The motion carried by voice vote.

Mr. Hall stated that one thing that the By-laws do not address is that in most cases a petitioner has to wait one year before resubmitting an application unless there are changed conditions. He said that there has been a lot changed since this case began and the By-laws do not seem to require that one year wait time therefore given the understanding at the time that the Board dismissed the case he is inclined to accept a reapplication tomorrow morning.

Mr. Thorsland stated that should this case be resubmitted he would assume that everyone who is present tonight would like to be notified of the new public hearing date. He said that staff will make sure that everyone who is in attendance tonight will be included as a special for any new case.

 Case 793-S-14 Petitioner: Lawrence Johnson and Fuad Handal Request: 1) Authorize a kennel as a Special Use on 1.8 acres located in the AG-1, Agriculture Zoning District; and 2) Authorize the following waivers to the standard conditions of the Kennel Special Use as per Section 6.1.3 of the Zoning Ordinance: a. A separation distance of 95 feet between any outdoor animal exercise/training area and any adjacent residential structure and/or use in lieu of the required 200 feet; Note: WAIVER NOT NEEDED FOR REVISED SITE PLAN. b. No noise buffer of evergreen shrubs or trees in lieu of the required noise buffer of evergreen shrubs or trees a minimum of four feet in height installed separating the exercise and/or training area from any adjacent structure and/or use; and c. A side yard setback of 85 feet in lieu of the required 200 feet. Location: A 1.8 acre tract in the Southeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 5, Township 19N, Range 8E. in Champaign Township with an address of 1211 North Staley Road, Champaign.

Mr. Thorsland informed the audience that anyone wishing to testify for any public hearing tonight must sign the witness register for that public hearing. He reminded the audience that when they sign the witness register they are signing an oath. He asked the audience if anyone desired to sign the witness register at this time.

Mr. Thorsland informed the audience that this is an Administrative Case and as such the County allows anyone the opportunity to cross examine any witness. He said that at the proper time he will ask for a show of hands for those who would like to cross examine and each person will be called upon. He requested that anyone called to cross examine go to the cross examination microphone to ask any questions. He said that those who desire to cross examine are not required to sign the witness register but are requested to clearly state their name before asking any questions. He noted that no new testimony is to be given during the cross examination. He said that attorneys who have complied with Article 7.6 of the ZBA By-Laws are exempt from cross examination.

Mr. Thorsland asked the petitioners if they desired to make a statement outlining the nature of their request.

1 Mr. Lawrence Johnson, who resides at 1211 N. Staley Road, Champaign, stated that he has petitioned to 2 receive approval for a small household kennel business. He said that he intends to comply with all of the 3 zoning regulations therefore he revised the site plan to comply with those regulations.

4 5

Ms. Lee stated that Mr. Johnson previously testified that he did not like the burning that previously took place on the subject property. She asked Mr. Johnson if he has exclusive possession of the property that he is renting or can the landlord come and go as he pleases to do whatever he chooses to do.

7 8 9

6

Mr. Johnson stated that the landlord has the right to come and go and do as he pleases on the property.

10 11

Ms. Lee asked Mr. Johnson if he has a written lease.

12

13 Mr. Johnson stated yes. He said that the lease does not indicate that the landlord cannot do what he wants to 14 do on the property.

15

16 Mr. Passalacqua asked Mr. Johnson if his lease includes the metal shed on the property.

17

18 Mr. Johnson stated no.

19

20 Ms. Lee asked Mr. Johnson how often the landlord visits the property.

21 22

Mr. Johnson stated that the landlord visits the property weekly because there is paint stored in the house for the landlord's other projects.

23 24

25 Mr. Thorsland asked Mr. Hall if he had new information to present to the Board regarding this case.

26

28 29

31

32

33

27 Mr. Hall stated that the description of the case, included on the cover of the Supplemental Memorandum dated May 6, 2015, discusses the fence surrounding the activity area on the south, northeast and north sides but the description should indicate south, east and north sides as this is how the petition is written and the 30 Summary of Evidence. He said that waiver a. is no longer required due to the revised site plan and description b. is accurate. He said that the only new information is the early draft version of the April 16, 2015, minutes which were distributed to the Board for review. He said that most of the testimony at the last meeting appeared to address everyone's concerns which could be the reason why no one else is present at tonight's hearing.

- 36 Mr. Thorsland stated that he was not present for the last public hearing for this case but he understands that it was a long evening but it appears that everything was worked out between the neighbors, the petitioner and 37 the Board. He asked Mr. Johnson if he has had a lot of interaction with the neighbors since the last public 38
- 39 hearing.

Mr. Johnson stated no. He said that no one has ever contacted him during his time living at the residence.

3 4

Mr. Thorsland asked Mr. Johnson if the April 16th minutes adequately reflect what occurred at the meeting.

5

Mr. Johnson stated yes.

7

Ms. Lee stated that Mr. Johnson has indicated that he owns six dogs and occasionally he has the landlord's two dogs on the property therefore Mr. Johnson only has openings for seven additional dogs. She asked Mr. Johnson how close he is on most days to his maximum capacity.

11

Mr. Johnson stated that when business is slow he does watch his landlord's dogs but it is usually in the summer.

14

Ms. Lee asked Mr. Johnson to indicate the largest number of dogs that he has had at the kennel at one time within the last three months.

17

18 Mr. Johnson stated that within the last three he has had ten dogs at one time.

19 20

Ms. Lee asked Mr. Johnson if he is indicating that with his six dogs he only had four other client's dogs.

21

22 Mr. Johnson stated yes.

23

24 Ms. Lee asked Mr. Johnson to indicate his fee for each dog.

25

26 Mr. Johnson stated that he charges \$20 per dog.

27

Ms. Lee asked Mr. Johnson if the fee is the same for a small or large dog.

29

30 Mr. Johnson stated yes.

31

Mr. Thorsland asked Ms. Lee to explain the relevance of her question regarding the fee.

33

Ms. Lee stated that she doesn't understand how Mr. Johnson is making it if he only has seven additional dogs by which he charges a fee.

36

37 Mr. Passalacqua stated that Mr. Johnson's income is not the Board's venue.

38

39 Mr. Thorsland stated that the Board is present to either grant or deny the case and the business income is not

part of it the review.

Ms. Lee stated that the income is relevant to the total number of dogs at the kennel and whether Mr. Johnson goes over the maximum of 15.

Mr. Thorsland stated that it does but the Board has an agreement with Mr. Johnson regarding the maximum number of dogs allowed.

Ms. Lee stated that her question regarding the income was not due to dollars and cents but to the number of dogs.

12 Mr. Thorsland stated that he understands Ms. Lee's reasoning for questioning the fee.

Mr. Johnson stated that he is fine with the maximum number of dogs being 15. He said that he lives on the property by himself and he does not have any children therefore he does not need 30 or 40 dogs to make ends meet.

Mr. Thorsland stated that previous testimony indicated that part of Mr. Johnson's business is not solely taking care of dogs during the day and night but training the dogs.

Ms. Lee asked how the Board will regulate the number of dogs on the property.

Mr. Passalacqua stated that it is complaint driven.

Mr. Thorsland stated that he is sure that the neighbors will be very attentive to the number of dogs that are on the property and if it appears that there are more than 15 they will probably call Mr. Hall with a complaint.

Mr. Hall stated that this case will be treated like any other case in that the Board either trusts what the petitioner has said and agreed to or they don't. He said that there is no way to ensure that no violation will ever occur.

Mr. Thorsland asked the Board if there were any additional questions for Mr. Johnson and there were none.

Mr. Thorsland stated that the Board will now review page 28 of the Revised Draft Summary of Evidence dated May 14, 2015, regarding the proposed special conditions for Case 793-S-14.

Mr. Thorsland read proposed special condition A. as follows:

1	A. The Zoning Administrator shall not authorize a Zoning Use Permit Application
2	or issue a Zoning Compliance Certificate on the subject property until the
3	lighting specifications in Paragraph 6.1.2.A. of the Zoning Ordinance have been
4	met.
5	The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:
6	That exterior lighting for the proposed Special Use meets the requirements

established for Special Uses in the Zoning Ordinance.

7 8 9

Mr. Thorsland asked Mr. Johnson if he agreed with proposed special condition A.

10 11

Mr. Johnson stated that he agreed with proposed special condition A.

12 13

Mr. Thorsland read proposed special condition B. as follows:

14 15

16

17

18

19

20

B. The number of animals to be boarded at one time will not exceed 15, including dogs that are the property of anyone residing on the property and any dogs belonging to the owner of the property, which is the number the Petitioner indicated as the maximum that they would board.

The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:

That noise from the proposed Special Use is minimally disruptive to the surrounding area.

21 22 23

Ms. Capel suggested that special condition B. be revised as follows: The number of animals on the property will not exceed 15 at any one time.

24 25 26

Mr. Thorsland stated that he prefers "dogs" over "animals". He asked Ms. Capel to indicate her concern with the existing text.

27 28 29

Ms. Capel stated that the special condition can be stated very concisely in that the number of dogs will not exceed 15 on the property at any one time.

30 31 32

Mr. Hall stated that he would beg the Board to include some statement which includes the dogs of the owner as well as the dogs of the resident because it is such an obvious question in the future.

33 34 35

36

Mr. Thorsland stated that the zoning district is AG-1 therefore dogs or pigs could be on the subject property. He said that if the Board changes "animals" to "dogs" the special condition would not be limiting what is already a by-right use.

37 38 39

Mr. Hall stated that he does appreciate the comment regarding the number of dogs to be on the property at

7

8

12

17

18 19

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29 30

31 32

33 34

35 36

37

38

39

Mr. Thorsland read proposed special condition D. as follows:

D.

any one time so that someone could not indicate that they are only boarding 15 of the 30 dogs that are 1 2 present on the property. 3 4 Mr. Hall recommended the following change to proposed special condition B.: 5 The number of dogs to be on the subject property at any one time shall not В. exceed 15, including dogs that are the property of anyone residing on the property and any dogs belonging to the owner of the property. 9 The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following: 10 That noise from the proposed Special Use is minimally disruptive to the 11 surrounding area. 13 Ms. Capel stated that she agreed with Mr. Hall's revision with special condition B. 14 15 Mr. Johnson stated that he agreed with revised special condition B. 16 Mr. Thorsland read proposed special condition C. as follows: The Zoning Administrator shall not authorize a Zoning Use Permit Application C. 20 or issue a Zoning Compliance Certificate on the subject property until the Petitioner has installed a six feet tall wood fence on the south, north and east sides and chain link on the west side of the relocated fenced activity area. There can be no gap between the wood fence and the chain link fence. The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following: That the Special Use conforms to the Zoning Ordinance requirement that the Special Use is so designed, located, and proposed as to be operated so that it will not be injurious to the DISTRICT in which it shall be located or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. Mr. Thorsland asked Mr. Johnson if he agreed with proposed special condition C. Mr. Johnson stated that he agreed with revised special condition C.

The Zoning Administrator shall not authorize a Zoning Use Permit Application

or issue a Zoning Compliance Certificate on the subject property until the

Petitioner has ensured compliance with the Illinois Accessibility Code.

The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:

That all state accessibility requirements have been met.

Mr. Thorsland asked Mr. Johnson if he agreed with special condition D.

5

Mr. Johnson asked Mr. Thorsland if the proposed special condition is requiring a wheelchair ramp.

Mr. Hall informed Mr. Johnson that he should contact Doug Gamble to see what his requirement is because this is not a County requirement. He said that he could tell Mr. Johnson wrong either way so the best bet is for Mr. Johnson to personally contact Mr. Gamble. Mr. Hall noted that Mr. Gamble would be willing to visit the subject property if Mr. Johnson would prefer.

Mr. Hall stated that normally Mr. Gamble will only be concerned if new parking is being proposed and if so then the parking has to be accessible but Mr. Johnson is not adding any new parking. He said that it is not clear that Mr. Johnson needs to do anything which is the reason why he is requesting that Mr. Johnson contact Mr. Gamble.

Mr. Johnson stated that he agreed with special condition D and he will contact Mr. Gamble.

Mr. Thorsland read proposed special condition E. as follows:

E. No dog shall be kenneled outside other than for intermittent periods of exercise and such periods of exercise shall be supervised by the kennel owner or representative.

The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:

To ensure that kennel operations are consistent with the testimony and to minimize impact on the neighbors.

Mr. Thorsland asked Mr. Johnson if he agreed to special condition E.

Mr. Johnson stated that he agreed to special condition E.

F. The private sewage disposal system serving the Special Use Permit shall be maintained as necessary or as recommended by the County Health Department but maintenance shall occur on at least a triennial basis and all maintenance reports shall be made available for review by the Zoning Administrator. Failure to provide copies of maintenance reports when requested shall constitute a violation of this Special Use Permit approval and the Zoning Administrator shall refer the violation to the Champaign County State's Attorney for legal action.

The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:

To ensure that the septic system continues to be of sufficient capacity and in operation given the increase in use from a single family residence to a residence with a Kennel.

Mr. Thorsland asked Mr. Johnson if he agreed with proposed special condition F.

Mr. Johnson stated that he agreed with proposed special condition F.

Mr. Thorsland read proposed special condition G.

G. No Trash or garbage shall be burned on the property.

The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:

To ensure that the Special Use conforms with the Zoning Ordinance policy protecting the health, safety, and general welfare of area residents.

Ms. Griest stated that Mr. Johnson's testimony indicated that, technically, he was not renting all of the property. She asked Mr. Hall if Mr. Johnson is not going to have control over all of the property does this condition refer to the entire parcel or only the portion of the property of which Mr. Johnson does have control.

Mr. Thorsland states that no trash or garbage shall be burned on the property.

Mr. Johnson stated that he had no control over what was going on when the EPA visited the property. He said that he spoke with the EPA because he was the only person on the property at the time of their visit. He said that Mr. Handal called him shortly after the EPA's visit and told him that if anyone shows up with materials to burn that they are not allowed to do it because if they do it will cost Mr. Handal \$3,000 in fines.

Mr. Passalacqua stated that the violation with the EPA is not on Mr. Johnson's shoulders and has nothing to do with this case.

Ms. Griest agreed. She said that she does not want to burden Mr. Johnson with the responsibility of controlling a landlord which seems to be outside of the bounds of EPA regulations.

Mr. Thorsland stated that perhaps the condition could indicate that no trash or garbage shall be burned on the 1.8 acres of the property, as contained in this Special Use Permit.

Mr. Hall stated that Mr. Thorsland's proposed text does not change anything because that is what this condition is already.

38

39

1			
2	Mr. Thorsland stated that someone could decide that this means the entire property and not just the 1.8 acres		
4 5 6	Ms. Griest stated that if Mr. Hall is clarifying that the condition, as written, only pertains to the portion of the property that is covered by the special use.		
7 8	Mr. Hall stated that that would be a different condition because the 1.8 acres consists of the land that the Board may authorize the kennel upon plus the sheds that are there and Mr. Johnson does not use. He said		
9	that all of the sheds are not located on the 1.8 acres but Mr. Johnson isn't proposing to use all of the 1.8		
11 12	acres for the kennel. He said that based on what Mr. Johnson said about the last visit by the EPA, there will not be burning occurring on the 1.8 acres because there will be a \$3,000 fine imposed upon the landowner.		
13 14	Mr. Thorsland asked Mr. Johnson if Mr. Handal is aware of the possible \$3,000 fine.		
15 16	Mr. Johnson stated yes, because Mr. Handal called him to tell him about it.		
17 18	Mr. Thorsland asked Mr. Johnson if he agreed with proposed special condition G. as written.		
19 20	Mr. Johnson stated that he agreed with proposed special condition G. as written.		
21 22	Mr. Thorsland read proposed special condition H.		
23 24 25 26 27 28	 H. The Special Use Permit shall expire when the current resident operator Mr. Reginald Johnson no longer resides on the property. The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following: To ensure that there is an experienced and qualified resident operator that has been involved in the public hearing for this case. 		
29 30	Mr. Thorsland asked Mr. Johnson if he agreed with proposed special condition H.		
31 32 33	Mr. Johnson stated that he agreed with proposed special condition H.		
34 35 36	I. The Revised Site Plan received April 24, 2015, will be the final site plan for approval and will include the floor plans received April 07, 2015. The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:		

site plan for approval.

To ensure that all parties are clear in which submitted site plan is the official

1 Mr. Thorsland asked Mr. Johnson if he agreed with proposed special condition I.

Mr. Johnson stated that he agreed with proposed special condition I.

5

Mr. Thorsland asked the Board if there were any additional questions for Mr. Johnson and there were none.

Mr. Thorsland entertained a motion to approve special conditions.

Ms. Griest moved, seconded by Ms. Capel to approve the special conditions. The motion carried by voice vote.

Mr. Thorsland asked Mr. Hall if there were any new Documents of Record.

Mr. Hall stated that there were no new Documents of Record.

Findings of Fact for Case 793-S-14:

From the documents of record and the testimony and exhibits received at the public hearing for zoning case 793-S-14 held on February 12, 2015, April 16, 2015, and May 14, 2015, the Zoning Board of Appeals of Champaign County finds that:

1. The requested Special Use Permit IS necessary for the public convenience at this location.

Mr. Passalacqua stated that the requested Special Use Permit IS necessary for the public convenience at this location because it is an underserved market.

Mr. Thorsland stated that the proposed Special Use Permit serves a demand that is underserved in this area and the site has easy access for a business of this type to the urban area.

2. The requested Special Use Permit, subject to the special conditions imposed herein, is so designed, located, and proposed to be operated so that it WILL NOT be injurious to the district in which it shall be located or otherwise detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare.

a. The street has ADEQUATE traffic capacity and the entrance location has ADEQUATE visibility.

Ms. Capel stated that the street has ADEQUATE traffic capacity and the entrance location has ADEQUATE

1 2	visibility.	
3	b.	Emergency services availability is ADEQUATE.
5	Mr. Passalacqua stat	ed that emergency services availability is ADEQUATE.
7 8	c.	The Special Use WILL be compatible with adjacent uses.
9	Mr. Passalacqua stat	ed that the Special Use WILL be compatible with adjacent uses.
11 12	d.	Surface and subsurface drainage will be ADEQUATE.
13 14	Mr. Passalacqua stat	ed that surface and subsurface drainage will be ADEQUATE and is unchanged.
15 16	e.	Public safety will be ADEQUATE.
1 <i>7</i> 18	Ms. Capel stated that	public safety will be ADEQUATE.
19 20	Mr. Thorsland stated	that public safety will be ADEQUATE due to Special Conditions C. and E.
21 22	f.	The provisions for parking will be ADEQUATE.
23 24	Mr. Passalacqua state	ed that the provisions for parking will be ADEQUATE.
25 26 27	g.	The property is BEST PRIME FARMLAND and the property with the proposed improvements IS WELL SUITED OVERALL.
28 29 30	Mr. Passalacqua state improvements IS WI	ed that the property is BEST PRIME FARMLAND and the property with the proposed ELL SUITED OVERALL.
31 32 33	h.	The existing public services ARE available to support the proposed special use effectively and safely without undue public expense.
34 35 36	Ms. Griest stated that effectively and safely	the existing public services ARE available to support the proposed special use without undue public expense.
3 <i>7</i> 38 39	i.	The only existing public infrastructure together with proposed improvements ARE adequate to support the proposed development effectively and safely without undue public expense.

SUBJECT TO APPROVAL

DRAFT

5/14/15

ZBA

DRAFT

1	
2	
3	
4	
_	

Mr. Passalacqua stated that the only existing public infrastructure together with proposed improvements ARE adequate to support the proposed development effectively and safely without undue public expense.

Mr. Thorsland stated that the requested Special Use Permit, subject to the special conditions imposed herein, is so designed, located, and proposed to be operated so that it WILL NOT be injurious to the district in which it shall be located or otherwise detrimental to the public health, safety, and welfare.

3a. The requested Special Use Permit, subject to the special conditions imposed herein, DOES conform to the applicable regulations and standards of the DISTRICT in which it is located.

Ms. Griest stated that the requested Special Use Permit, subject to the special conditions imposed herein, DOES conform to the applicable regulations and standards of the DISTRICT in which it is located.

3b. The requested Special Use Permit, subject to the special conditions imposed herein, DOES preserve the essential character of the DISTRICT in which it is located because:

a. The Special Use will be designed to CONFORM to all relevant County ordinances and codes.

Ms. Capel stated that the Special Use will be designed to CONFORM to all relevant County ordinances and codes.

b. The requested Special Use Permit IS necessary for the public convenience at this location.

Mr. Thorsland stated that the requested Special Use Permit IS necessary for the public convenience at this location.

c. The requested Special Use Permit, subject to the special conditions imposed herein, is so designed, located, and proposed to be operated so that it WILL NOT be injurious to the district in which it shall be located or otherwise detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare.

Mr. Passalacqua stated that the requested Special Use Permit, subject to the special conditions imposed herein, is so designed, located, and proposed to be operated so that it WILL NOT be injurious to the district in which it shall be located or otherwise detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare.

d. The requested Special Use Permit, subject to the special conditions imposed herein, DOES preserve the essential character of the DISTRICT in which it is located.

Ms. Capel stated that the requested Special Use Permit, subject to the special conditions imposed herein, DOES preserve the essential character of the DISTRICT in which it is located.

Ms. Capel stated that the requested Special Use Permit, subject to the special conditions imposed herein, IS in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the Ordinance.

5. The requested Special Use IS NOT an existing nonconforming use.

Mr. Thorsland stated that the requested Special Use IS NOT an existing nonconforming use.

6. For the requested waivers, special conditions and circumstances DO exist which are peculiar to the land or structure involved, which are not applicable to other similarly situated land and structures elsewhere in the same district.

Mr. Passalacqua stated that for the requested waivers, special conditions and circumstances DO exist which are peculiar to the land or structure involved, which are not applicable to other similarly situated land and structures elsewhere in the same district because of the proximity to the City of Champaign.

7. For the requested waivers, practical difficulties or hardships created by carrying out the strict letter of the regulations sought to be varied WILL prevent reasonable or otherwise permitted use of the land or structure or construction.

 Mr. Thorsland stated that for the requested waivers, practical difficulties or hardships created by carrying out the strict letter of the regulations sought to be varied WILL prevent reasonable or permitted use of the land or structure or construction.

8. For the requested waivers, the special conditions, circumstances, hardships, or practical difficulties DO NOT result from actions of the applicant.

Ms. Capel stated that for the requested waivers, the special conditions, circumstances, hardships, or practical difficulties DO NOT result from actions of the applicant.

9. The special conditions imposed herein are required to ensure compliance with

 the criteria for Special Use Permits and for the particular purposed described below:

- A. The Zoning Administrator shall not authorize a Zoning Use Permit Application or issue a Zoning Compliance Certificate on the subject property until the lighting specifications in Paragraph 6.1.2.A. of the Zoning Ordinance have been met.
 - The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:

 That exterior lighting for the proposed Special Use meets the requirements established for Special Uses in the Zoning Ordinance.
- B. The number of dogs to be on the subject property at any one time shall not exceed 15, including dogs that are the property of anyone residing on the property and any dogs belonging to the owner of the property. The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following: That noise from the proposed Special Use is minimally disruptive to the surrounding area.
- C. The Zoning Administrator shall not authorize a Zoning Use Permit Application or issue a Zoning Compliance Certificate on the subject property until the Petitioner has installed a six feet tall wood fence on the south, north and east sides and chain link on the west side of the relocated fenced activity area. There can be no gap between the wood fence and the chain link fence.

The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:

That the Special Use conforms to the Zoning Ordinance requirement that the Special Use is so designed, located, and proposed as to be operated so that it will not be injurious to the DISTRICT in which it shall be located or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare.

D. The Zoning Administrator shall not authorize a Zoning Use Permit Application or issue a Zoning Compliance Certificate on the subject property until the Petitioner has ensured compliance with the Illinois Accessibility Code.

The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following: That all state accessibility requirements have been met.

E. No dog shall be kenneled outside other than for intermittent periods of exercise and such periods of exercise shall be supervised by the kennel

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29
31
32
33
31 32 33 34 35
35
36

38 39 owner or representative.

The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:

To ensure that kennel operations are consistent with the testimony and to minimize impact on the neighbors.

F. The private sewage disposal system serving the Special Use Permit shall be maintained as necessary or as recommended by the County Health Department but maintenance shall occur on at least a triennial basis and all maintenance reports shall be made available for review by the Zoning Administrator. Failure to provide copies of maintenance reports when requested shall constitute a violation of this Special Use Permit approval and the Zoning Administrator shall refer the violation to the Champaign County State's Attorney for legal action.

The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:

To ensure that the septic system continues to be of sufficient capacity and in operation given the increase in use from a single family residence to a residence with a Kennel.

G. No Trash or garbage shall be burned on the property.

The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:

To ensure that the Special Use conforms with the Zoning Ordinance policy protecting the health, safety, and general welfare of area residents.

- H. The Special Use Permit shall expire when the current resident operator Mr. Reginald Johnson no longer resides on the property.
 The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:
 To ensure that there is an experienced and qualified resident operator
- that has been involved in the public hearing for this case.
- I. The Revised Site Plan received April 24, 2015, will be the final site plan for approval and will include the floor plans received April 07, 2015. The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:

 To ensure that all parties are clear in which submitted site plan is the official site plan for approval.

Mr. Thorsland entertained a motion to adopt the Summary of Evidence, Documents of Record and Findings

of Fact as amended.

Ms. Griest moved, seconded by Ms. Capel to adopt the Summary of Evidence, Documents of Record and Findings of Fact as amended. The motion carried by voice vote.

Mr. Thorsland entertained a motion to move to the Final Determination for Case 793-S-14.

Ms. Griest moved, seconded by Ms. Capel to move to the Final Determination for Case 793-S-14. The motion carried by voice vote.

 Mr. Thorsland informed Mr. Johnson that currently the Board has one vacant Board seat and one absent Board member therefore it is at his discretion to either continue Case 793-S-14 until a full Board is present or request that the present Board move to the Final Determination. He informed Mr. Johnson that four affirmative votes are required for approval.

Mr. Johnson requested that the present Board move to the Final Determination.

Final Determination for Case 793-S-14:

Ms. Griest moved, seconded by Ms. Capel that the Champaign County Zoning Board of Appeals finds that, based upon the application, testimony, and other evidence received in this case, the requirements of Section 9.1.11B. for approval HAVE been met, and pursuant to the authority granted by Section 9.1.6B. of the Champaign county Zoning Ordinance, determines that:

The Special Use requested in Case 793-S-14 is hereby GRANTED WITH SPECIAL CONDITIONS to the applicants Fuad Handal and Lawrence Johnson to:

1) Authorize a kennel as a Special Use on 1.8 acres located in the AG-1, Agriculture Zoning District.

2) Authorize the following waivers to the standard conditions of the Kennel special use as per Section 6.1.3 of the Zoning Ordinance:

a. A six feet tall wood privacy fence around the activity area on the northeast and north side.

b. A side yard setback of 85 feet in lieu of the required 200 feet.

Subject to the following special conditions:

7

A. The Zoning Administrator shall not authorize a Zoning Use Permit Application or issue a Zoning Compliance Certificate on the subject

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9
10
9 10 11
12
13
14
15
16
17
13 14 15 16 17 18
19
20
21
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
32
33
34
35
36
37
38

property until the	lighting specifications in Paragraph 6.1.2.A. of	the
Zoning Ordinance h	ave been met.	

The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:

That exterior lighting for the proposed Special Use meets the requirements established for Special Uses in the Zoning Ordinance.

- B. The number of dogs to be on the subject property at any one time shall not exceed 15, including dogs that are the property of anyone residing on the property and any dogs belonging to the owner of the property. The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:

 That noise from the proposed Special Use is minimally disruptive to the surrounding area.
- C. The Zoning Administrator shall not authorize a Zoning Use Permit Application or issue a Zoning Compliance Certificate on the subject property until the Petitioner has installed a six feet tall wood fence on the south, north and east sides and chain link on the west side of the relocated fenced activity area. There can be no gap between the wood fence and the chain link fence.

The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following:

That the Special Use conforms to the Zoning Ordinance requirement that the Special Use is so designed, located, and proposed as to be operated so that it will not be injurious to the DISTRICT in which it shall be located or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare.

D. The Zoning Administrator shall not authorize a Zoning Use Permit Application or issue a Zoning Compliance Certificate on the subject property until the Petitioner has ensured compliance with the Illinois Accessibility Code.

The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following: That all state accessibility requirements have been met.

E. No dog shall be kenneled outside other than for intermittent periods of exercise and such periods of exercise shall be supervised by the kennel owner or representative.

The special condition stated above is required to ensure the following: To ensure that kennel operations are consistent with the testimony and to minimize impact on the neighbors. **ZBA**

37

38

39

DRAFT

Lee-yes

Capel-yes

Griest-yes

Passalacqua-yes

Randol-absent

Thorsland-yes

Mr. Hall informed Mr. Johnson that he received an approval for his request. He said that Ms. Chavarria will contact Mr. Johnson regarding the contact information for Doug Gamble and a copy of the final documentation will be sent out as soon as possible.

6. New Public Hearings

None

7. Staff Report

11 None

8. Other Business

A. Review of Docket

Mr. Hall stated that Ms. Chavarria is acting as staff's chief enforcer for people who need to submit their applications for a public hearing but this process will take a while.

Mr. Hall stated that the City of Urbana did file a conditional protest for Case 769-AT-13 and he is glad that they did because it really has to do with something that we were too aggressive on in changing in the current policy and it was a very reasonable change and that change is what ELUC recommended at their meeting last week. He said that even though it was a condition protest it was sort of a friendly protest and the County will be better off for it. He said that hopefully Case 769-AT-13 will be approved by the County Board next week.

Ms. Lee asked Mr. Hall to explain what portion of the amendment that the City of Urbana protested.

 Mr. Hall stated that Section 4.3, Exemptions and our current policy exempts anything that is subject to municipal storm water regulations. He said that Mr. Kass had assisted him with this and when an exemption for anything subject to annexation agreement was added in Section 4.2 Mr. Kass believed that this removed the need for that existing exemption but in fact it didn't because Section 4.2 is only for when there is an annexation agreement. He said that there could still be development subject to municipal storm water regulations of which the County would still permit. He said that he was actually glad that the City of Urbana caught that and he just restored the existing exemption the way it is in the current storm water policy and it is a really good change.

Ms. Lee asked Mr. Hall if the ZBA needs to do anything about this change.

Mr. Hall stated that this is out of the ZBA's hands. He said that he took it to be a friendly amendment to the

1	Board's recommendation and it didn't need to come back to the ZBA. He said that if it had subsequently
2	changed the ZBA's recommendation it should have been sent back so that the ZBA could approve it but
3	since it was something that was in our existing policy it did not need to be sent back to this Board.
4	
5	Mr. Thorsland stated that he will be absent for the May 28 th meeting.
6	, and a second of the second o
7	Ms. Griest stated that she will be absent from the June 11 th meeting.
8	
9	Ms. Lee stated that she will be scheduling hand surgery as soon as possible but she has not specific date yet.
10	She said that she will let staff know when a date is set.
11	
12	Mr. Thorsland asked Mr. Hall if any applications for the vacant Board seat have been submitted.
13	out the same and t
14	Mr. Hall stated that at this time there are no valid applications for the empty Board seat.
15	and the second s
16	9. Audience Participation with respect to matters other than cases pending before the Board
17	belove the board
18	None
19	
20	10. Adjournment
21	
22	Mr. Thorsland entertained a motion to adjourn the meeting.
23	
24	Ms. Griest moved, seconded by Ms. Lee to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried by voice vote.
25	
26	The meeting adjourned at 7:56 p.m.
27	and the same of the plant
28	
29	
30	Respectfully submitted
31	
32	
33	
34	
35	Secretary of Zoning Board of Appeals
36	
37	

2 MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 3 CHAMPAIGN COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 4 1776 E. Washington Street 5 Urbana, IL 61802 6 7 DATE: May 28, 2015 PLACE: Lyle Shield's Meeting Room 8 1776 East Washington Street 18 TIME: 7:00 p.m. **Urbana**, IL 61802 11 **MEMBERS PRESENT:** Catherine Capel, Debra Griest, Marilyn Lee, Brad Passalacqua, Jim Randol 12 13 **MEMBERS ABSENT:** Eric Thorsland 14 15 **STAFF PRESENT:** Connie Berry, John Hall, Susan Chavarria 16 17 **OTHERS PRESENT:** Joyce Hudson, Thomas Drysdale 18 20 1. Call to Order 21 22 The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. 23 24 Mr. Hall informed the Board that due to the absence of Mr. Thorsland, Chair, the Board needs to appoint an 25 Acting Chair for tonight's meeting. 26 27 Mr. Randol moved, seconded by Ms. Lee to appoint Catherine Capel as the Acting Chair for the May 28th meeting. The motion carried by voice vote. 28 29 30 2. Roll Call and Declaration of Quorum 31 32 The roll was called and a quorum declared present with one member absent and one vacant seat. 33 34 Ms. Capel informed the audience that anyone wishing to testify for any public hearing tonight must sign the 35 witness register for that public hearing. She reminded the audience that when they sign the witness register 36 they are signing an oath. 37 38 3. Correspondence 39 DRAFT 40 None 41 42 4. Approval of Minutes (April 16, 2015) 43

Ms. Lee moved, seconded by Ms. Griest to approve the April 16, 2015, minutes.

Ms. Capel entertained a motion to approve the April 16, 2015, minutes.

44

45

48

Ms. Capel asked the Board if there were any additions or corrections to the minutes.

Ms. Capel stated that she has given staff two minor grammatical edits.

1 2 3

The motion carried.

4 5

5. Continued Public Hearing

6 7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22 23

24

Cases 799-AM-15, 800-S-15 and 801-V-15 Petitioner: Joyce Hudson d.b.a. Hudson Farm Weddings and Events, LLC Requests: Case 799-AM-15: Amend the Zoning Map to change the zoning district designation from the AG-1 Agriculture Zoning District to the AG-2 Agriculture Zoning District in order to operate the proposed Special Use in related Zoning Case 800-S-15 and subject to the requested variance in related case 801-V-15; and Case 800-S-15: Part A. Authorize the remodeling of existing farm buildings for the establishment and use of an Event Center as a combination "Private Indoor Recreational Development" and Outdoor Commercial Recreational Enterprise" as a Special Use on land that is proposed to be rezoned to the AG-2 Agriculture Zoning District from the current Ag-1 Agriculture Zoning District in related zoning case 799-AM-15 and subject to the requested variance in related zoning case 801-V-15; and Part B. Authorize the following waiver to the standard conditions of the "Outdoor Commercial Recreational Enterprise" special use as per Section 6.1.3 of the Zoning Ordinance: A separation distance of 50 feet in lieu of the required 200 feet between any Outdoor Commercial Recreational Enterprise and any adjacent residential structure and/or use; and Case 801-V-15: A variance from Section 7.1.2.E.4.c(1) of the Zoning Ordinance that requires onsite parking to allow off-premises parking on the shoulder of County Road 1800 East during special events held at the proposed Private Indoor Recreational Facility that is also the subject of related cases 799-AM-15 and 800-S-15. Location: A 3.67 acre tract in Urbana Township in the Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 25 of Township 19N, Range 9E of the Third Principal Meridian and commonly known as the farmstead located at 1341 CR 1800E, Urbana.

252627

Ms. Capel called Cases 799-AM-15, 800-S-15 and 801-V-15 concurrently.

28 29

30

31

32

33

34

35

Ms. Capel informed the audience that Cases 800-S-15 and 801-V-15 are Administrative Cases and as such the County allows anyone the opportunity to cross examine any witness. She said that at the proper time she will ask for a show of hands for those who would like to cross examine and each person will be called upon. She requested that anyone called to cross examine go to the cross-examination microphone to ask any questions. She said that those who desire to cross examine are not required to sign the witness register but are requested to clearly state their name before asking any questions. She noted that no new testimony is to be given during the cross examination. She said that attorneys who have complied with Article 7.6 of the ZBA By-Laws are exempt from cross examination.

36 37

Ms. Capel informed the audience that anyone wishing to testify for any public hearing tonight must sign the
 witness register for that public hearing. She reminded the audience that when they sign the witness register

they are signing an oath. She asked the audience if anyone desired to sign the witness register at this time.

Ms. Capel asked the petitioners if they would like to make a brief statement regarding their request.

Mr. Thomas Drysdale, attorney for the petitioner, stated that at the last hearing a lot of testimony was presented and a lot of discussion occurred but there were a few things that were left outstanding and the Board's biggest concern was the parking issue. He said that tonight he would like to distribute an aerial photograph indicating a box on the southern end of the property which encompasses .04 acres and that area is the proposed area that has been sketched out accommodating 68 parking spaces. He said that they have also provided a small area for ingress from the road. He said that the proposed 68 spaces will be on the tract of farmland that runs adjacent to the grass and should satisfy the Board's concern. He said that the other document that he distributed to the Board is a floor plan of the barn, which was also requested by the Board at the last hearing, and indicates the general setup and dimensions of the inside of the barn.

Mr. Drysdale stated that he does not have paper documentation but a few weeks ago he did speak to Doug Gamble on the phone regarding the accessibility features on the farm. He said that he and Mr. Gamble had a half hour conversation and Mr. Drysdale informed Mr. Gamble about the nature of the business and what goes on during events and currently what accessibility features exist on the farm and what is being used and done to create accessibility. Mr. Drysdale said that Mr. Gamble indicated that he was fine with everything that was out there currently as long as handicap parking spaces are put in, which is Ms. Hudson's plan. Mr. Drysdale said that Mr. Gamble also said that he would like to see a hard surface installed from the shed to the barn so that handicapped guests could have easy access to the barn. Mr. Drysdale stated that the barn is where the weddings are held and the shed is where the receptions are held and a hard surface would accommodate people in wheelchairs, motorized scooters or walkers to and from the two buildings. He noted that the hard surface area will be constructed during the same time as the handicap parking spaces. He said that according to his conversation with Doug Gamble, once these issues were taken care of he could not see any additional problems regarding accessibility.

Mr. Drysdale stated that the last concern by the Board was related to the septic tank situation. He said that as of last week or so the septic system situation has become confusing on their part and to make a long story short the proposed septic system that Mr. Flanagan is telling Ms. Hudson that she needs at Hudson Farms is entirely too big and is overkill for the amount of waste, events and guests that Ms. Hudson is having at her premises. He said that Ms. Hudson wanted to use port-a-potties or portable bathrooms at the premises for the limited purposes of her events and she was told by the Board that it was not a problem and Mr. Flanagan indicated that it also was not problem but the Illinois State Plumbing Inspector became involved and he indicated that it was a problem on his end. Mr. Drysdale stated that the Illinois State Plumbing Inspector indicated that according to his regulations port-a-potties or portable bathrooms are not allowed for the type of venue that Ms. Hudson holds. Mr. Drysdale stated that the next suggestion was to place a holding tank on the premises known as the Hudson Farms and Mr. Flanagan is of the opinion that a holding tank is not

2

3 4

5 6

7

8 9

10

11

12

13 14

15

16

allowed on the Hudson Farm property but Mr. Drysdale is of the opinion that Illinois Private Sewage Disposal Code, specifically Section 905.140(a) authorizes the use of a holding tank on Ms. Hudson's property if the proposed septic system or the septic system that is being proposed does not fit or is inappropriate for the conditions or the site that the septic tank is proposed for. He said that Mr. Flanagan has informed Ms. Hudson that she needs a septic tank that will hold the waste capacity of 225 people on 365 days a year. Mr. Drysdale stated that the septic tank that Mr. Flanagan has suggested is incredibly large and is unbelievably expensive and is unduly burdensome on Ms. Hudson because she should not have to put in a septic system with a tank that holds the waste of 225 people for 365 days a year when she only has 21 events per year. He said that he has placed a few calls to Mr. Flanagan but it is his understanding that Mr. Flanagan is out of the office for a couple of weeks. Mr. Drysdale stated that he is in the process of trying to work with Mr. Flanagan to gain approval for the holding tank at which point it would hold the waste of 225 people, which is the capacity of Hudson Farms, and then that holding tank would be serviced by a licensed contractor after the weddings and events at the premises. He said that this would eliminate Ms. Hudson from having to put in such a large and expensive septic system on her property that is not going to get a fraction of the use in which it is designed for. Mr. Drysdale stated that currently this where he and Ms. Hudson stand in regards to what the Board requested them to provide based on the testimony presented at the last public hearing. He said that he would be happy to answer any questions that the Board may have.

17 18 19

Ms. Capel asked the Board if there were any questions for Mr. Drysdale.

20 21

Ms. Lee asked Mr. Drysdale to indicate what size septic system the State Plumbing Inspector recommended versus the holding tank.

22 23 24

25

26 27

28

29 30 Mr. Drysdale stated that to be honest he does not know a ton about septic systems but what Mr. Flanagan told him on the phone and the price that was quoted was very expensive. Mr. Drysdale stated that Mr. Flanagan told him that because Hudson Farms has the capacity of 225 people that they have to have septic tank that will hold the waste capacity of 225 people on an everyday basis and not just a septic tank that would hold the waste capacity of 225 people on Saturday when Ms. Hudson had a wedding and then cleaned out for the next event. Mr. Drysdale stated that the size and price difference between the holding tank that Ms. Hudson had originally looked at and the septic tank that Mr. Flanagan indicated was necessary was astronomical.

31 32 33

Mr. Hall stated that he thought the cost problem was for the septic system and not just the septic tank.

34 35

Mr. Drysdale stated yes, it is the system.

36 37

Mr. Randol asked Mr. Drysdale if he knew the gallon capacity of each of these proposed systems.

38

Mr. Drysdale stated that he does not have that information with him tonight but the contractors that Ms. 39

Hudson has contacted to complete the work could provide that information to the Board for review.

1 2 3

Ms. Capel asked if staff had any questions for Mr. Drysdale.

4 5

Mr. Hall asked Mr. Drysdale if his client would be willing to accept a limit of no more than 21 events per year.

6 7 8

Mr. Drysdale stated that he will defer answering Mr. Hall's question therefore allowing Ms. Hudson to respond.

9 10 11

12

13

14

15

16 17

18 19

20 21

22

23

24

25

26 27

28

29 30

31

32

33

3435

36

37

38

39

Mr. Hall stated that the Board needs the full picture of what has happened and the full picture is that Ms. Hudson, on her own and with no encouragement from staff, proposed to build restrooms and install a sentic system. He said that the Illinois Private Sewage Code provides no reduction for the size of a septic field based on the frequency of use and sometimes this is a problem for facilities that are not used continuously because surges occur with the system. He said that the Hindu Cultural Center addressed the surge problem by installing smaller multiple septic tanks because the surge had less effect on multiple tanks than a single tank. He said that the Hindu Cultural Center installed a septic system to accommodate their capacity for every day of a year even though they only planned to be at the Center on their religious days. He said that the L.A. Gourmet Event Center installed a system to accommodate 500 people every day of the year even though they do not host events every day of the year and certainly not all of their events are for 500 people. He said that this whole process did not start with someone proposing something for 21 events per year with no construction of toilet facilities but did start with someone proposing something during certain months with the construction of restrooms. He said that if someone proposes to install restrooms they will have to install a septic system therefore when Mr. Flanagan was faced with installing restrooms without a septic system he had to determine how much construction had already began on the proposed restrooms. Mr. Hall stated that Mr. Flanagan requested the assistance of the State Plumber and he identified some things that are not quite up to par with the code and that is not terribly surprising and is why every jurisdiction that has a code does inspections to make sure that things are done correctly. He said that it was not Larry Luka, the State Inspector, who made the determination that Ms. Hudson had to go ahead and do the whole kit and caboodle to install the restrooms and toilets and it was someone above Mr. Luka. Mr. Hall stated that he believes that the person who did determine this requirement is above Mr. Luka and Mr. Hall believes that this person is misinterpreting his own Illinois Plumbing Code and everyone in our office believes that he is misinterpreting the Illinois Plumbing Code although our own Champaign County Health Department is not interested whether or not he is misinterpreting the Illinois Plumbing Code. Mr. Hall stated that the Champaign County State's Attorney told him that the Zoning Board of Appeals cannot overrule the Illinois Department of Health when it comes to public health. Mr. Hall stated that this is not an ideal situation because it is crystal clear that there is an individual at IDPH that believes that a facility like this requires a septic system and that is how they are interpreting their code. He said that he and Ms. Chavarria are in the process of revising the condition related to septic systems to make sure that if there is a septic system

installed it had better be according to a permit issued by our own health department. He said that he does not know if limiting the amount of events would cause IDPH to reconsider their position but it might be a reasonable thing to request provided that they are at least willing to talk to Mr. Drysdale because they were not willing to talk to Mr. Hall.

Mr. Passalacqua stated that he does not know how they are going to care about the number of events if they are looking at a size based on a maximum capacity for one event.

Mr. Hall stated that when they are approached by an attorney perhaps they will change their mind.

Mr. Passalacqua asked Mr. Hall if there are any more specifics as to what the problem is regarding the current install and the concrete.

Mr. Hall stated that he did not receive the specifics and there really is not much installed. He said that his question to Mr. Flanagan was if all of the concrete and everything else is removed to where there is no plumbing why could they not use port-a-potties because it is explicitly provided for in the *Illinois Private Sewage Disposal Code*.

Mr. Drysdale stated that he was specifically told that because there is a roof on the building which is why port-a-potties were not allowed but if Ms. Hudson was merely using a tent or a roofless building then port-a-potties would be perfectly acceptable but since her facility is inside a facility with four walls and a roof then she has to have restrooms and not port-a-potties.

Mr. Passalacqua stated that it appears that the Board has their hands tied regarding any decisions until the Board receives documentation that these things have been worked out.

Mr. Hall stated that once the Board has the information that has been requested and has reviewed that information the Board could decide whether or not to approve it. He said that the only thing the Zoning Ordinance requires the Board to do is to ensure that any new septic system complies with the *Illinois Private Sewage Disposal Code* and the Board has to find that there is no risk to public safety. He said that whether a roof is over someone's head or not, if they can use port-a-potties for a tent why can't they use port-a-potties if a farm building has been remodeled, provided that the port-a-potties are properly cleaned out by the appropriate technicians. He said that it is up to the Board but if the Board waits for this to be resolved between the Petitioner and the other code bodies then it is undetermined when a decision will happen.

Mr. Randol asked if part of the problem is because this is a private facility with all kinds of parties then, sort of speaking, the facility is open to the public. He asked if there is a different code for a public venue versus a private venue.

Mr. Drysdale stated that it is his understanding that there is no difference. He said that Ms. Hudson's events are not open to the public and not just anyone can come on the property to partake in the facility. He said that the guests would be invited by the clients who are holding the event at Ms. Hudson's property.

Mr. Hall stated that the *Illinois Plumbing Code* is the worst enforced code in the State of Illinois because staff knows that people construct buildings every day of the year with no toilets and this is due to Champaign County deciding years ago that they were not going to make sure that the *Illinois Plumbing Code* is enforced. He said that he does not understand why Champaign County made this decision and he does not agree with it but that is the decision that we have. He said that the decision that Champaign County made many years ago was not during his tenure. He said that frankly Champaign County has a problem with dealing with codes but that is the situation that we have today.

Ms. Lee asked Mr. Hall if he means state codes.

15 Mr. Hall stated that he means providing for people's health, safety and welfare on a daily basis.

17 Ms. Lee asked Mr. Drysdale who he spoke with at the Illinois Department of Health.

Mr. Drysdale stated that he has talked to several offices and he apologizes if he gets them mixed up. He said that he spoke with Mike Flanagan at the Illinois Department of Health.

Ms. Chavarria stated that Mike Flanagan is with the Champaign County Department of Health.

Mr. Drysdale stated that he spoke with Larry Luka and his assistant and this is the department where he spoke back and forth about roofs being on buildings and the need for restroom facilities. He said that Larry Luka's department indicated that they believed that Mike Flanagan's determination was incorrect which created a tangent conversation. He said that Larry Luka's office stated that they are going to enforce a provision from the *Illinois Plumbing Code* on his client and they will have a meeting to decide what exactly needs to be done and someone will get back with him about the meeting's results. Mr. Drysdale stated that he left his information with Mr. Luka and has yet to hear from him regarding the meeting's results.

Mr. Hall asked Mr. Drysdale if he still has not received a final decision.

Mr. Drysdale stated no. He said that no one has called him back to indicate the steps that are needed to comply with the *Illinois Plumbing Code* and the only thing that they told him was that they will not allow his client to have port-a-potties on the property. He said that this was the last conversation that he had with them and Mr. Luka indicated that they would speak again after they had whatever meeting they needed to have and to date he has heard nothing.

DRAFT

1 Mr. Hall stated that Mr. Luka would not even speak to him about it and referred him to his supervisor.

Mr. Drysdale stated that he did not get past Mr. Luka. He said that he is certainly willing and will make more calls to continue to work on this issue.

Mr. Hall informed Mr. Drysdale that he needed to ask for Mr. Mark Kuechler and he wishes him better luck than he had.

Ms. Lee stated that during Mr. Drysdale's initial presentation he quoted a section from the *Illinois State Plumbing Code*. She asked Mr. Drysdale if his conversation with Mr. Luka dealt with that section.

Mr. Drysdale stated that the section that he quoted from was the section that Mr. Flanagan had initially told them that a holding tank for the Hudson Farm was not an option. Mr. Drysdale stated that he quoted the section out of the *Illinois Private Sewage Disposal Code* which is the section of the *Illinois Private Sewage Disposal Code* that specifically deals with holding tanks and it indicates that holding tanks are approved for private sewage disposal under the following circumstances: where site conditions, such as lack of size, or other conditions are not suitable to achieve compliance with this part for installing a private sewage disposal system.

Ms. Lee asked Mr. Drysdale if this is Illinois Statute.

22 Mr. Drysdale stated yes.

Ms. Lee asked Mr. Drysdale if he has had time to look up any case law regarding this issue.

Mr. Drysdale stated that there is a distinct lack of court cases regarding the *Illinois Private Sewage Disposal Code*. He said that the only case interpretation that he found was the difference between a public facility and a private facility and was unable to find anything else.

Ms. Griest stated that Mr. Drysdale is classifying this venue as private even though it is a commercial venture.

- Mr. Drysdale stated yes. He said that according to an opinion that he found by the Illinois Attorney General the difference in classifying it as a "public facility," there is a difference between "public facilities" and "private facilities," the Attorney General classifies things like theatres, restaurants and stadiums as "public facilities" and are open to the general public. He said that the general public can flow freely in and out of these events as opposed to what Ms. Hudson is running in which the general public cannot freely flow in and out. He said that if the Board is interested in the Attorney General's opinion he would be happy to provide it
- 39 as evidence.

Mr. Randol asked Mr. Hall what happens if the ZBA approves the requests and the State comes back with their plumbing requirements. He said that the State of Illinois' plumbing requirements are out of the ZBA's hands.

Mr. Hall stated that he is not an attorney, but at a minimum that would be an enforcement action by the IDPH or perhaps the CCDPH against Ms. Hudson. He said that he does believe that it would involve the Champaign County Department of Planning and Zoning.

Ms. Lee asked Mr. Hall if there are other cases that the Board has heard with provisions that were out of the Board's hands for compliance.

Ms. Capel stated that those provisions are included in a special condition.

Mr. Hall stated that for this case he would recommend a reduced version of that special condition but still require conformance with the Zoning Ordinance.

Mr. Drysdale stated that the previous testimony regarding installation of two small septic systems has never been suggested to his client as an option. He said that he and his client would be willing to investigate the cost of such a system.

Mr. Hall stated that option would be more expensive because two tanks with more connections would be more expensive but ultimately it may be a better system. He said that as he understands it, cost is an issue, and Ms. Hudson has plenty of land which is being farmed which could be converted for a septic system therefore land is not an issue.

Ms. Griest stated that the statute that was cited did not include cost as one of the prohibitive factors that allowed that holding tank. She said that just because it is expensive to do, the other does not give an out for the installation of a holding tank whereas if they did not have an adequate footprint on the land an opportunity would be given to exercise that clause but cost was not in that statute.

Ms. Lee stated that a tile cannot be placed in the agricultural field.

Mr. Hall stated that his point was that on this parcel there is land available for a septic system.

Mr. Randol stated that perhaps this case should be tabled until more definitive answers are provided by the State. He said that if the ZBA approves the requests and there are issues with the State it is not being ethical for the ZBA to approve a use of the land and the use is ceased because the Petitioner cannot meet the septic requirements. He said that there is more to it than just the ZBA making adjustments and amendments to

1 ordinances.

Mr. Hall asked Mr. Randol what it would take for him to be comfortable that the events at Ms. Hudson's property, whether they build a new septic system or not, would not harm public health or safety. He asked Mr. Randol what information would be required.

Mr. Randol stated that the avenue that he is looking at regarding health and safety is, if the ZBA approves the changes and the variances and a venue is held which results with a sewage issue, would there be any recourse on staff or the ZBA because they approved it without an adequate septic system.

Mr. Hall stated that any approval that the ZBA gives will absolutely require that any new septic system be approved by the Health Department with a duly approved permit.

Mr. Randol stated that the Board could approve the requests and if Ms. Hudson does not comply with the State requirements that will be an issue with Ms. Hudson and the State and not with Ms. Hudson, the State and the ZBA.

 Mr. Hall stated that Mr. Randol was correct, as long as the Board is convinced that knowing that there is this issue, if the Board has any concerns regarding public health and safety which is one of the findings that the Board has to make, then this is a problem that must be resolved even with the condition requiring that any new septic system be approved by the Health Department.

Mr. Randol stated that there is a kitchen.

Mr. Hall stated that there is no kitchen which is part of this approval.

Mr. Randol stated that this is strictly a restroom issue.

Mr. Drysdale stated that the food is catered and there is no kitchen proposed.

Ms. Griest stated that the site plan indicates that each room is 35' x 41'. She said that the large building is not 35' x 41' therefore she requested that Mr. Drysdale put the site plan into context. She said that the plan that was submitted appears to be more of a seating chart rather than a floor plan. She said that she would like to see a floor plan that indicates where the doors are located for ingress and egress and a site plan with individual floor plans of each building and an explanation of where the activities take place.

Mr. Drysdale stated that a floor plan was provided of the shed but one was not provided for the barn.

7

Mr. Hall stated that a revised site plan was requested at the previous meeting. He said that a floor plan of the

shed indicating the restrooms was provided and is included as Attachment F. on page 5 of 5 of the Preliminary Memorandum dated April 9, 2015. He said that the Board also requested a floor plan of the barn at the previous hearing.

4 5

Ms. Griest stated that she believed that the barn is where the actual ceremonies occur and there was line-up seating in the barn therefore the submitted floorplan is confusing.

6 7 8

Mr. Hall stated that the submitted floor plan is better than what the Board sees in most instances but it does indicate restrooms and restrooms cannot exist if there is no septic system.

9 10

Ms. Lee stated that the plan only indicates one doorway plus the overhead door. She asked Mr. Hall how many doors are required for a building of this size.

13 14

Mr. Hall stated that at least two doors located at opposite ends and the width of each door is a function of the capacity. He said that there is a very detailed method for determining that.

15 16 17

18

Ms. Chavarria stated that she has completed a site visit and can confirm that there is a second door on the back end of the Farm Shed Hall which is diagonally across from the doorway that is shown for the Farm Shed Hall. She said that the opposite door does not appear on the floor plan.

19 20

21 Ms. Capel asked Ms. Chavarria if the door is a walk-through door.

22

Ms. Chavarria stated yes. She said that this does not help with how many doors are actually required for accessibility purposes but there is another door that is not indicated on the floor plan.

24 25

Mr. Randol asked if the doors are overhead doors or are they on a track.

26 27

Ms. Chavarria stated that there are two regular doors and there are three overhead doors, two on the north side and one on the east.

30

31 Mr. Drysdale noted that the doors are sliding doors not overhead doors.

32

Mr. Randol stated that if the doors are sliding doors on a track there would be no issue with opening them when there is no electricity available.

34 35

Mr. Passalacqua stated that he was unclear what the client was agreeing to regarding parking. He said that the Board wanted dimensions on the site plan and the location of the septic system, if required.

38

Mr. Drysdale stated that the Board wanted to see 68 parking spaces. He said that the 68 parking spaces

would be in the field to avoid the parking around the actual venue, which is what was being avoided with the variance to begin with, and that excludes the mapped out handicapped parking spaces which will be located near the shed. He said that the proposed location of the septic system is to the left of the shed where the field is located.

Mr. Passalacqua stated that the 68 parking spaces shown are in the tilled acres. He asked Mr. Drysdale if his client has indicated that she is willing to convert the tilled area into the parking area for this facility.

Mr. Drysdale stated yes. He said that his client wanted to find a way that would both satisfy what they wanted to do, which was not park vehicles on the site, and what the Board wanted to do, which was not park vehicles on the street. He said that the result was to convert the tilled farmland into the parking area for the venue.

Mr. Passalacqua asked Mr. Drysdale if, during the Board's review they propose a condition that indicates that this will be the parking area for the facility, his client will agree to that condition.

Mr. Drysdale stated yes.

19 Ms. Lee asked Mr. Drysdale if Alternative 1 is out of the question.

Mr. Drysdale stated that Alternative 1 is their less favorite alternative and would prefer Alternative 2.

Mr. Hall stated that staff can provide this same aerial view without the lettering so that he or Ms. Hudson could sketch in the proposed parking area and label it as parking and they could sketch in where any new septic system might go and call it "location of any new septic system" and indicate where the handicapped spaces are proposed with required dimensions. He said that the handicapped parking area has very specific dimensional requirements, striping requirements and signage requirements that could just be noted. He said that the Board would probably like to see an accurate and detailed floor plan for both buildings. He said that if staff provided a clean copy of the aerial photograph he is confident that a complete and accurate site plan could be submitted by Mr. Drysdale and Ms. Hudson.

Mr. Passalacqua stated that the hard surface path that Doug Gamble required should also be indicated on the site plan.

Mr. Hall stated that if staff could obtain a site plan one week before the next meeting the Board could review
 it and be very comfortable with it.

Mr. Passalacqua noted that the sanitary aspect of this venue is going to be extremely difficult but he is very comfortable in moving forward as long as the Board's findings indicate that the Board is requiring

compliance with someone else's ordinance or regulations that is out of the Board's control.

1 2 3

Mr. Hall asked Mr. Passalacqua to explain what he is referring to when he states requiring compliance.

4

Mr. Passalacqua stated that the Board has previously required compliance by other entities.

5

Ms. Lee stated that the approval could be subject to both the Champaign County Health Department and the
 Illinois Department of Health.

9

10 Mr. Hall stated that Ms. Hudson would have to agree with that condition.

11

Mr. Passalacqua asked Mr. Hall how the Board has written such a condition in the past.

13 14

15

16 17

18

19

Mr. Hall stated that in the past the Board would state that a septic system will be installed but this Board has never had something like this, the use of port-a-potties, proposed. He said that if the Board believes that it can make findings that this will not be damaging to public health and safety, even though the Board is not certain that port-a-potties will or will not be used and the Board is comfortable if the port-a-potties are used and is comfortable with only requiring that any new septic system be approved by the Health Department, then the condition would only call out that any new septic system must be approved by the Health Department.

20 21 22

Mr. Passalacqua stated that this is what he was alluding to.

23 24

25

Ms. Capel stated that the Board is not requiring them to provide a new septic system but if they were to provide a new septic system it would comply. She said that the finding that the Board would need to make with that condition is that it will not be injurious to the public health and safety.

262728

Mr. Passalacqua stated that he would be comfortable in saying that it is not injurious to public health if whatever item is constructed, whether the use of port-a-potties or a new septic system, complies.

293031

Ms. Capel stated that the Board cannot make a recommendation that is against the codes but the Board can make a recommendation that basically recognizes that if a septic system is installed it has to comply.

32 33

34 Mr. Passalacqua agreed.

35

Ms. Lee asked if that compliance has to be with Champaign County and the State of Illinois.

37

38 Mr. Passalacqua stated that it is out of the Board's hands.

39

Ms. Griest stated that the Board is not saying that they have to have a septic system but they do have to have a waste disposal system of some type which could be port-a-potties or a septic system.

3 4

Mr. Randol stated that it could even be the holding tank.

5 6

7

Ms. Griest stated that the Board is kicking the ball back to public health and stating that it is their game. She said that they have to be in compliance for their special use to be valid but the Board has no jurisdiction over how public health makes it happen.

8 9

Mr. Hall stated that this finding is going to be very silent about public health and safety and the only thing that the Board can do is require that any new septic system be approved by the health department and that is exactly how he would word it.

13

Mr. Passalacqua stated that the use of port-a-potties is not a violation of our ordinance.

15

Mr. Hall stated that port-a-potties are consistent with the *Illinois Private Sewage Disposal Code* which is what the Zoning Ordinance references.

18

Ms. Lee stated that the Board is supposed to make a finding that this is okay for AG-2. She said that the AG-2 Zoning District has requirements that it is supposed to be beneficial to agriculture. She asked how the Board is supposed to do that.

22

Ms. Griest stated that the use provides agri-tourism.

23 24

Mr. Hall stated that AG-2 does not say anything about being beneficial to agriculture. He said that the AG-2 Zoning District is intended to prevent scattered indiscriminate urban development and to preserve the AGRICULTURAL nature within areas which are predominately vacant and which presently do not demonstrate any significant potential for development.

29 30

Mr. Passalacqua stated that it is keeping with agriculture because it is the use of existing agricultural barns in a rural setting.

31 32

Mr. Hall stated that if there were opposing neighbors present they would say that the Board better also find
 that it preserves the character of the surrounding AG-1 Zoning District.

35

36 Mr. Passalacqua stated that it does.

37

Mr. Hall stated that it certainly does not harm it. He said that the Board has done this before and can do it again because this is actually even more so not harming the AG-1 District and he believes that the Board can

1 make those findings.

Mr. Passalacqua stated that if the Board receives a detailed site plan and floor plan and the Petitioner is in agreement with the Board's proposal for the parking in getting vehicles off of the street the Board should be able to move forward.

Mr. Hall stated that there have been no neighboring farmers who have voiced opposition and that they coordinate with Hudson Farms is great evidence.

Mr. Passalacqua asked Mr. Drysdale and Ms. Hudson if they clearly understood what the Board is requiring
 before the next meeting.

Mr. Drysdale stated yes. He said that Mr. Hall indicated that staff would provide him and Ms. Hudson with a clean aerial photograph of the subject property. He said that he understands what needs to go on the aerial photograph and understands that a detailed floor plan of the barn and shed are required for the Board's review. He said that he will get this information to staff within the next few weeks.

Ms. Capel asked Mr. Drysdale if he understands that the Board needs dimensions on the site plans.

Ms. Griest stated that the doors should be indicated on the floor plans. She said that a directional arrow would also be helpful.

Mr. Drysdale stated that there could probably never be too much information on the floor plans and site plan.

Ms. Griest stated that if an area will be used as a multi-use purpose area then, for clarity, it should be indicated on the floor plan. She said that it is not necessary for the Board to see how the chairs and tables are set up. She asked Mr. Hall if it would be helpful for the floor plan for the shed to indicate the area for the band or music, food, seating area, etc. She said that Mr. Drysdale indicated that the septic system was sized for the capacity of 225 people but if the number of people were limited it might help with the costs of the septic system. She said that during previous cases the Board has limited the number of guests or clients for a facility or venue on a given day.

Mr. Hall stated that it would help but the Board spent a lot of time determining that a maximum capacity of 225 people was a desirable number.

Mr. Hall informed Mr. Drysdale that the Board is not asking that there be any further resolution of this disagreement between the Petitioner and the Health Department, at least for purposes of this public hearing.

Mr. Passalacqua stated that the Board only needs to consider the information and requirements of the

1 Champaign County Zoning Ordinance.

2

Ms. Griest stated that the only thing that impacts this Board is the floor plan and whether there will be bathrooms and where they will be placed and if there are no bathrooms proposed they should not be indicated on the floor plan.

5 6 7

4

Mr. Hall stated that for the future it might be good to know where bathrooms might be installed if a new septic system is installed.

8 9

Ms. Griest stated that Mr. Hall was correct as this would prevent the Petitioner from having to come back
 before the Board for a second approval.

12

13 Ms. Capel asked if the location of the port-a-potties was important information for the site plan.

14

Mr. Hall stated that having the information on the site plan would be the evidence that indicates that the Board knows this is not going to be no worse for public health than any other facility that uses port-a-potties.

17

Mr. Drysdale stated that it would not be a problem to sketch in where hypothetical port-a-potties would go if they were hypothetically placed on the property.

20

21 Ms. Lee asked if the hypothetical holding tank should be indicated in a hypothetical area on the site plan.

22

Mr. Hall stated no. He said that he disagrees with Mr. Drysdale regarding the holding tank because the Illinois Private Sewage Disposal Code, as Ms. Griest previously pointed out, does not allow the use of a holding tank just because the septic system is expensive.

26

Mr. Randol asked Mr. Hall if the Board approves the variance with a limit of 21 events per year the Petitioner could come back within one year and request a new variance for an unlimited number of events per year.

30

31 Mr. Hall stated that such a request would be a new Special Use Permit.

32 33

Mr. Randol stated that just because the Board approves one issue the Petitioner could come back in one year to change their request.

34 35

Ms. Hall stated yes, but right now there has been no suggestion that the number of events would be limited.

37

Ms. Griest stated that even if the number of events were limited it would not be a limitation by variance but by Special Use Permit. She said that the only thing that the Petitioner was asking to be varied was to allow for the on-street parking and when they return to the next meeting with the new site plan indicating off-street parking the variance will go away and the Special Use will not be affected. She said that what Mr. Randol is discussing regarding the limitation of 21 events per year is within the Special Use Permit and is not part of any variance request.

5

Ms. Capel asked Ms. Hudson if she desired to testify.

7 8

Ms. Joyce Hudson, who resides at 1341 CR 1800E, Urbana, stated that she had no new information to add but would answer any questions that the Board may have.

9 10

11 Ms. Capel requested a continuance date.

12

13 Ms. Griest reminded the Board that she will not be present at the June 11, 2015, meeting.

14

Mr. Hall recommended that that Cases 799-AM-15, 800-S-15 and 801-V-15 be continued to the June 25, 2015, meeting. He said that there should be a full Board present at the June 25th meeting and there should be plenty of time to consider these cases. He asked Ms. Hudson if she would be available for the June 25, 2015, meeting.

19

20 Ms. Hudson stated yes.

21

Ms. Capel entertained a motion to continue Cases 799-AM-15, 800-S-15 and 801-V-15 to the June 25, 2015, meeting.

24 25

Mr. Passalacqua moved, seconded by Ms. Griest to continue Cases 799-AM-15, 800-S-15 and 801-V-15 to the June 25, 2015, meeting. The motion carried by voice vote.

26 27

Ms. Capel asked the audience if anyone else desired to present testimony regarding these cases and there was no one.

30

31 Ms. Capel closed the witness register.

32 33

6. New Public Hearings

34 35

35 None 36

37

7 7. Staff Report

38

39 None

1 2

8. Other Business

A. Review of Docket

 Mr. Hall stated that staff received a new case application in time for advertising for the June 11th meeting. He said that there will be a meeting on June 11th for a variance case. He said that some might say that the County pays so much for per diem for only one case but no one wants to wait any longer than necessary to have their case heard so staff scheduled the case on the June 11th meeting. He said that if the Board has concerns about using the County's per diem more efficiently staff will keep that in mind but when there is an opening and somebody wants their case decided this is staff's response.

Mr. Passalacqua stated that if he was a petitioner he would not want to wait to have his case heard.

Ms. Lee asked Mr. Hall to indicate any progress regarding the Petitioner who did not show up for the public hearing therefore the case was dismissed.

Mr. Hall stated that a letter was sent to the Petitioner the very next day advising him that the case was dismissed but the variance was still needed and if the variance is not approved enforcement action will be taken. He said that it will be two weeks tomorrow and staff has not heard from the Petitioner.

Mr. Passalacqua asked Mr. Hall if there has been an improvement in enforcement with the help of the interns hitting the streets.

Mr. Hall stated yes and the interns have been very good in doing inspections and as suspected when they write their First Notice of Inspection either the Zoning Officer or himself have to review them. He said that if any Board member has driven up or down Highway 45 recently between Thomasboro and Rantoul they will notice a dramatic change in the landscape. He said that enforcement actions are starting to clear up the landscape of the Cherry Orchard area and the Jones' building, which is the easternmost building of the complex, was burned either last weekend or the week before.

Ms. Griest stated that she did notice that the grass had been mowed.

 Mr. Hall stated that the grass has been mowed and the buildings have been secured. He said that staff does know that a prominent local civil engineering firm has been hired to design an extension of sewer for the property and staff is just waiting to hear whether or not the Board will receive a Special Use Permit Application for the property because it is a nonconforming use that requires a Special Use Permit if it is to be rebuilt. He said that this case may be coming before the ZBA soon but not so soon that it has been placed on the docket.

 SUBJECT TO APPROVAL

DRAFT

5-28-15

Secretary of Zoning Board of Appeals

Respectfully submitted

34 35

ø ZBA

DRAFT

2 MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 3 CHAMPAIGN COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 4 1776 E. Washington Street Urbana, IL 61802 5 6 7 DATE: June 11, 2015 PLACE: Lyle Shield's Meeting Room 8 1776 East Washington Street 18 TIME: 7:00 p.m. Urbana, IL 61802 Marilyn Lee, Brad Passalacqua, Jim Randol, Eric Thorsland 11 **MEMBERS PRESENT:** 12 13 MEMBERS ABSENT: Cathe Capel, Debra Griest 14 15 Connie Berry, John Hall, Susan Chavarria STAFF PRESENT : 16 17 **OTHERS PRESENT:** Corbitt Griffith, Yvonne Griffith 18 1. 20 Call to Order 21 22 The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. 23 24 2. Roll Call and Declaration of Quorum 25 26 The roll was called and a quorum declared present with two members absent and one vacant seat. 27 28 Mr. Thorsland informed the audience that anyone wishing to testify for any public hearing tonight must sign the witness register for that public hearing. He reminded the audience that when they sign the witness 29 30 register they are signing an oath. 31 32 3. Correspondence 33 34 None DRAFT 35 36 4. **Approval of Minutes** 37 38 None 39 40 5. **Continued Public Hearing** 41 42 None 43 44 6. **New Public Hearings** 45 46 Case 803-V-15 Petitioner: Corbitt and Yvonne Griffith Request to authorize the following Variance

in the R-1 Single Family Residence Zoning District: A detached shed with a side yard of 2 feet in lieu

of the minimum required 5 feet. Location: Lot 23 in Block 6 of the Edgewood Subdivision in Section

47

48

è

10 of Urbana Township and commonly known as the residence at 307 E Dodson Drive, Urbana.

Mr. Thorsland informed the audience that this is an Administrative Case and as such the County allows anyone the opportunity to cross examine any witness. He said that at the proper time he will ask for a show of hands for those who would like to cross examine and each person will be called upon. He requested that anyone called to cross examine go to the cross examination microphone to ask any questions. He said that those who desire to cross examine are not required to sign the witness register but are requested to clearly state their name before asking any questions. He noted that no new testimony is to be given during the cross examination. He said that attorneys who have complied with Article 7.6 of the ZBA By-Laws are exempt from cross examination.

1 2

Mr. Thorsland informed the audience that anyone wishing to testify for any public hearing tonight must sign the witness register for that public hearing. He reminded the audience that when they sign the witness register they are signing an oath. He asked the audience if anyone desired to sign the witness register at this time.

Mr. Thorsland asked the petitioner if he would like to make a brief statement regarding their request.

Mrs. Yvonne Griffith, who resides at 307 E. Dodson Drive, Urbana, stated that approximately 15 years ago she and her husband moved to the subject property and within one or two years they had a shed built by a person who owned a shed making business in St. Joseph. She said that at the time of the construction of the shed she and her husband were not aware that they needed a permit for the shed. She said that she and her husband believed that since the shed was not attached to the house a permit was not required. She said that when they applied for a permit for their proposed sunroom they found out that the shed is closer to the property line than what is preferred. She said that staff came to their property to view the shed's location and saw that moving the shed, which is 15 years old with an attached porch, would destroy it. She said that there is no possible way to get large equipment in the back yard to even attempt moving the shed. Mrs. Griffith stated that the only other location for the shed is at the south end of the property but there is a utility pole with a transformer at that location and the transformer has caught on fire twice since the time that they have lived at the property, so with this concern they decided to put the shed in its current location. She said that there is also a large tree on their property with the septic system in front of the tree which also restricts placement of the shed. She said that once they discovered that the shed was in violation they immediately came to the office to apply for a variance which is why they are present tonight.

Mr. Thorsland asked Ms. Griffith if the permit for the sunroom is what actually started this process. He said that in reviewing the photographs of the property it is pretty apparent that the shed is pinned in on the property therefore Mr. and Mrs. Griffith will either need to remove the large mature tree or place the shed on the septic system.

 Mrs. Griffith stated that her husband visited each neighbor who adjoined their property as well as those who were outside of that boundary to explain their situation and not one neighbor had any concerns regarding the variance. She submitted a letter signed by all of the neighbors that Mr. Griffith visited indicating that the neighbors had no objections to the location of the shed or the requested variance.

1 2

Mr. Passalacqua asked Mrs. Griffith if the pole actually caught on fire or did the transformer blow up.

Mrs. Griffith stated that the last time the transformer blew up the Edge-Scott Fire Department came to the property because the wires were burning.

Mr. Thorsland stated that the event must have been quite a sight.

Mrs. Griffith stated that she and her husband have kept the shed in good condition and they recently had a new roof and gutters placed on it and had the shed repainted.

Mr. Thorsland asked the Board if there were any additional questions for Mrs. Griffith and there were none.

Ms. Thorsland asked if staff had any questions for Mrs. Griffith and there were none.

20 Mr. Thorsland asked the audience if anyone desired to cross examine Mrs. Griffith and there was no one.

Mr. Thorsland asked the audience if anyone desired to sign the witness register at this time to present testimony and there was no one.

Mr. Thorsland closed the witness register.

Mr. Thorsland stated that a new item #3 should be added to the Documents of Record as follows: Letter from adjacent neighbors, submitted by Mr. and Mrs. Griffith at the June 11, 2015, public hearing.

Mr. Thorsland asked the Board if any special conditions were required for this case and the Board indicated that there were none.

Finding of Fact for Case 803-V-15:

From the documents of record and the testimony and exhibits received at the public hearing for zoning case 803-V-15 held on June 11, 2015, the Zoning Board of Appeals of Champaign County finds that:

1. Special conditions and circumstances DO exist which are peculiar to the land or structure involved, which are not applicable to other similarly situated land and

structures elsewhere in the same district.

1 2 3

Mr. Passalacqua stated that special conditions and circumstances DO exist which are peculiar to the land or structure involved, which are not applicable to other similarly situated land and structures elsewhere in the same district because of the mature tree and the need for access to the transformer on the pole limits placement of the shed.

Mr. Thorsland stated that the location of the septic system on the lot restricts the shed's location.

2. Practical difficulties or hardships created by carrying out the strict letter of the regulations sought to be varied WILL prevent reasonable or otherwise permitted use of the land or structure or construction.

Mr. Randol stated that practical difficulties or hardships created by carrying out the strict letter of the regulations sought to be varied WILL prevent reasonable or otherwise permitted use of the land or structure or construction because the layout of the land, the septic system location on the lot restricts the building's location, a mature tree exists and the need for access to the transformer on the pole limits placement.

3. The special conditions, circumstances, hardships, or practical difficulties DO NOT result from actions of the applicant.

Mr. Randol stated that the special conditions, circumstances, hardships, or practical difficulties DO NOT result from actions of the applicant because the petitioners were unaware of the required setback and when the petitioners found out that they were in violation they took action and did not avoid it.

Mr. Thorsland stated that the house was constructed prior to the adoption of the Zoning Ordinance and the shed was constructed after the adoption of the Zoning Ordinance by a professional who apparently was not aware that a Zoning Use Permit was required for construction of the detached shed.

4. The requested variance IS in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the Ordinance.

Mr. Passalacqua stated that the requested variance IS in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the Ordinance because the Board has evidence that indicates that the neighbors are in agreement.

Mr. Thorsland noted that Mr. Passalacqua's statement might be better under Finding of Fact #5.

7

Mr. Thorsland stated that this allows the preservation of an existing structure and a mature tree and will keep the septic tank location free of structures.

1 2 3

4 5

6 7 8

9 10 11

12 13

14 15

16 17

18 19

20 21 22

23 24 25

26 27 28

29 30

31 32

33

34 35

36

37 38

Final Determination for Case 803-V-15:

39

Mr. Passalacqua moved, seconded by Mr. Randol that the Champaign County Zoning Board

The requested variance WILL NOT be injurious to the neighborhood or 5. otherwise detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare.

Mr. Passalacqua stated that the requested variance WILL NOT be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare because of evidence of agreement by the neighbors.

Mr. Thorsland stated that the fire protection district and the township highway commissioner were notified and no response was received.

> 6. The requested variance IS the minimum variation that will make possible the reasonable use of the land/structure.

Mr. Thorsland stated that the requested variance IS the minimum variation that will make possible the reasonable use of the land/structure.

> No special conditions are hereby imposed. 7.

Mr. Thorsland entertained a motion to adopt the Summary of Evidence, Documents of Record and Findings of Fact, as amended for Case 803-V-15.

Ms. Lee moved, seconded by Mr. Passalacqua to adopt the Summary of Evidence, Documents of Record and Findings of Fact, as amended for Case 803-V-15. The motion carried by voice vote.

Mr. Thorsland entertained a motion to move to the Final Determination for Case 803-V-15.

Mr. Passalacqua moved, seconded by Ms. Lee to move to the Final Determination for Case 803-V-15. The motion carried by voice vote.

Mr. Thorsland informed Mr. and Mrs. Griffith that currently the Board has one vacant Board seat and two absent Board members therefore it is at their discretion to either continue Case 803-V-15 until a full Board is present or request that the present Board move to the Final Determination. He informed Mr. and Mrs. Griffith that four affirmative votes are required for approval.

Mr. and Mrs. Griffith requested that the present Board move to the Final Determination.

of Appeals finds that, based upon the application, testimony, and other evidence received in this case, that the requirements for approval in Section 9.1.9.C HAVE been met, and pursuant to the authority granted by Section 9.1.6.B of the Champaign County Zoning Ordinance, the Zoning Board of Appeals of Champaign County determines that the Variance requested in Case 803-V-15 is hereby GRANTED to the petitioners Corbitt and Yvonne Griffith to authorize the following variance in the R-1 Residential Zoning District:

A detached shed with a side yard of 2 feet in lieu of the minimum required 5 feet.

Mr. Thorsland requested a roll call vote:

Lee-yes Passalacqua-yes Randol-yes
Capel-absent Griest-absent Thorsland-yes

Mr. John Hall, Zoning Administrator, informed Mr. and Mrs. Griffith that they have received approval for their request and staff will send out the appropriate paperwork as soon as possible. He noted that if Mr. and Mrs. Griffith has any questions they should not hesitate to call the office.

7. Staff Report

8. Other Busin

None

Other Business
A. Review of Docket

Mr. Thorsland informed the Board that the next meeting consists of the Hudson cases. He stated that he was not present at the last meeting for these cases therefore he would appreciate a copy of the draft minutes for review.

Ms. Lee informed the Board that her surgery has been scheduled therefore she will not be attending the June 25, 2015, public hearing.

9. Audience Participation with respect to matters other than cases pending before the Board

35 None

10. Adjournment

7

Mr. Thorsland entertained a motion to adjourn the meeting.

Mr. Passalacqua moved, seconded by Mr. Randol to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried by voice vote. 6 7 The meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m. Respectfully submitted Secretary of Zoning Board of Appeals

Champaign County
Department of
PLANNING &
ZONING

Brookens Administrative Center 1776 E. Washington Street Urbana, Illinois 61802

(217) 384-3708 zoningdept@co.champaign.il.us www.co.champaign.il.us/zoning

CASE NO. 792-V-14 REACTIVATED

SUPPLEMENTAL MEMORANDUM #2 July 8, 2015

Petitioner: Robert Frazier

Request: Authorize the following Variance from the Champaign County Zoning

Ordinance in the I-1 Light Industry Zoning District on the subject property

described below:

Part A. Variance for 48 on-site parking spaces in lieu of the minimum required 67 parking

spaces as required by Section 7.4 of the Zoning Ordinance.

Part B. Variance for a setback of 50 feet and a front yard of 20 feet between the principal building and Tiffany Drive in lieu of the minimum required setback of 55 feet and the minimum required front yard of 25 feet as required by Section 5.3 of the

Zoning Ordinance.

Part C. Variance for parking 0 feet from the front property line in lieu of the minimum required 10 feet from the front property line as required by section 7.4.1 of the

Zoning Ordinance.

Part D. Variance for allowing at least 19 off-street parking spaces on an adjacent lot in lieu of requiring all off-street parking spaces to be located on the same lot or tract of land as the use served, as required by Section 7.4.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.

Subject Property: Lot 4 of the Stahly Subdivision in the Southeast Quarter of Section 8 of Champaign Township and commonly known as the former LEX building located at 310 Tiffany Court, Champaign.

51,625 square feet (1.19 acres)

Time Schedule for Development: Already in use

Prepared by:

Site Area:

Susan Chavarria

Senior Planner

John Hall

Zoning Administrator

STATUS

The Petitioner did not attend his scheduled hearing on May 14, 2015, so the ZBA dismissed Case 792-V-14. Mr. Frazier was sent a notice that he could respond within 15 days to reactivate the case; Mr. Frazier responded within that time frame and his case has been reactivated under the same Case Number 792-V-14.

A new legal advertisement was required for reactivating the case and for two additional variances: Part C) allowing parking within 10 feet of the front property line and Part D) allowing off-street parking to be provided off premises.

PARKING

In the revised Site Plan received March 30, 2015 (Attachment C), Mr. Frazier proposes 9 head-in parking spaces on the west side of the property, adjacent to Tiffany Court. This parking area is already in use as indicated in the revised Site Plan. As per Section 7.4.1.A. of the Zoning Ordinance, a variance (Part C) for parking within 10 feet of the property line is necessary. This parking arrangement results in parked vehicles backing onto Tiffany Court, which should be carefully considered in terms of public safety.

Staff has proposed two special conditions regarding the west parking area (Special Conditions B and C below). Staff recommends that the Petitioner reconstruct the curb that he removed, which would in turn prohibit parking that requires anyone to reverse directly onto Tiffany Court. Note that these conditions are incompatible with the proposed site plan.

On March 1, 2015, Mr. Frazier leased parking space from Isaacs Properties on adjacent property 306 Tiffany Court. The gravel area on the southwest corner of the Isaacs property holds 32 vehicles. The contract ends on February 28, 2016, but can be extended at Mr. Frazier's option until February 28, 2018. Section 7.4.1 of the Zoning Ordinance states that "All off-street parking spaces shall be located on the same lot or tract of land as the use served". With the leased parking, Mr. Frazier appears to provide 80 parking spaces, including 3 accessible spaces, which exceeds Zoning Ordinance requirements for number of spaces but does not provide the required spaces on-site. An additional variance, Part D, is required in order to allow parking off-premises.

City of Champaign Planning Department was consulted to see if a long-term parking lease on a property within the City of Champaign would require subdivision approval by the city in addition to any applicable County regulations. Rob Kowalski, Assistant Director of Planning and Development for the City of Champaign, responded in an email received May 1, 2015 that city subdivision approval would not be necessary if Mr. Frazier decides to lease spaces from his neighbor; however, the neighbor would still have to meet city regulations for parking (see Attachment F from Supplemental Memo 1 dated May 6, 2015). Rob Kowalski sent a follow-up email (Attachment B to this email) on June 2, 2015 indicating that the owner to the north has sufficient parking for their own use in addition to what they are leasing to Mr. Frazier. He recommended adding a Special Condition that any required parking provided off-site and in the City shall be in compliance with the requirements of the City of Champaign Zoning Ordinance for off-street parking, including parking on an improved surface. Staff has added this proposed Special Condition in the revised Summary of Evidence dated July 8, 2015.

PROPOSED SPECIAL CONDITIONS

A. The Petitioner shall maintain the required 67 parking spaces either by lease or by purchase of adjacent land unless the Zoning Department determines that a different number of spaces are required. If parking spaces are leased, a copy of the signed lease must be provided annually to the Zoning Department and offsite parking spaces shall be continuously available at all times. Failure to comply with this special condition will result in enforcement action.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that adequate parking is provided for the subject property.

B. The existing and proposed parking plan on the west side of the property results in parked vehicles backing onto Tiffany Court, which is a public safety hazard. No vehicles may park on the west side of the Frazier building that requires them to back onto Tiffany Court except as may be required in emergencies.

July 8, 2015

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that safety is a priority in designing parking for the subject property.

C. Within one year of Final Determination in Case 792-V-14, the property owner must reconstruct the curb that was removed and must submit all necessary engineering documentation that would be required for meeting the original design and specifications in the Stahly Subdivision.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that the curb is restored so that the street right of way functions according to its original design.

D. A Change of Use Permit must be approved for each change of use on the subject property.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that only those uses authorized in the I-1 Light Industry District can be located on the subject property.

E. Any required parking provided off-site and in the City shall be in compliance with the requirements of the City of Champaign Zoning Ordinance for off-street parking, including parking on an improved surface.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that the property is in compliance with both City and County Ordinances.

ATTACHMENTS

- A Revised annotated Summary of Evidence dated July 8, 2015
- B Email from Rob Kowalski, City of Champaign, received June 2, 2015
- C Revised Site Plan received March 30, 2015
- D Annotated Site Plan West Parking Area dated July 8, 2015
- E Site Plan received July 17, 2014

792-V-14 REACTIVATED

SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE, FINDING OF FACT AND FINAL DETERMINATION

of

Champaign County Zoning Board of Appeals

Final Determination:

{GRANTED/ GRANTED WITH SPECIAL CONDITIONS/ DENIED}

Date:

{ JULY 16, 2015 }

Petitioner:

Robert Frazier

Request:

Authorize the following Variance from the Champaign County Zoning Ordinance in the I-1 Light Industry Zoning District on the subject property described below:

Part A. Variance for 48 parking spaces in lieu of the minimum required <u>67</u> parking spaces as required by Section 7.4 of the Zoning Ordinance.

Part B. Variance for a setback of 50 feet and a front yard of 20 feet between the principal building and Tiffany Court in lieu of the minimum required setback of 55 feet and the minimum required front yard of 25 feet as required by Section 5.3 of the Zoning Ordinance.

Part C. Variance for parking 0 feet from the front property line in lieu of the minimum required 10 feet from the front property line as required by section 7.4.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.

Part D. Variance for allowing at least 19 off-street parking spaces on an adjacent lot in lieu of requiring all off-street parking spaces to be located on the same lot or tract of land as the use served, as required by Section 7.4.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.

Table of Contents

General Application Information		
Requested Variance		
Specific Ordinance Requirements		
Variance Evidence		
Documents of Record	20-21	
Case 792-V-14 Findings of Fact	22-23	
Case 792-V-14 Final Determination	24-25	

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 2 of 25

07/08/15 REVISED DRAFT

SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE

From the documents of record and the testimony and exhibits received at the public hearing conducted on **February 12, 2015, May 14, 2015,** and **July 16, 2015,** the Zoning Board of Appeals of Champaign County finds that:

- 1. The petitioner, Robert Frazier, owns the subject property.
- 2. The subject property is a 1.19 acre tract of land on Lot 4 of the Stahly Subdivision in the Southeast Quarter of Section 8 of Champaign Township and commonly known as the former LEX building located at 310 Tiffany Court, Champaign.
- 3. Regarding municipal extraterritorial jurisdiction and township planning jurisdiction:
 - A. The subject property is located within the one and one-half mile extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Champaign, a municipality with zoning.
 - B. The subject property is located within Champaign Township, which does not have a Planning Commission.

GENERALLY REGARDING LAND USE AND ZONING IN THE IMMEDIATE VICINITY

- 4. Land use and zoning on the subject property and in the vicinity are as follows:
 - A. The subject property is a 1.19 acre tract and is currently zoned I-1 Light Industry. Land use is a combination of storage facilities and multi-tenant offices.
 - B. Land to the south and west of the subject property is zoned I-1 Light Industry and is industrial in use.
 - C. Land to the north is zoned I-1 Light Industry and is industrial in use.
 - D. Land to the east is zoned AG-2 Agriculture and B-4 General Business and is commercial in use.

GENERALLY REGARDING THE PROPOSED SITE PLAN

- 5. Regarding the site plan of the subject site:
 - A. Previous Zoning Use Permits on the subject property are as follows:
 - (1) Zoning Use Permit # 219-86-02 issued on 8/7/86 authorized construction of mini warehouse facilities.
 - (2) Zoning Use Permit # 166-96-01 issued on 6/17/96 authorized construction of an addition to an existing mini-warehouse building.

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 3 of 25

- (3) Zoning Use Permit # 280-99-01 issued on 10/8/99 authorized placement of a wall sign on an existing building.
- (4) Zoning Use Permit # 351-02-03 issued on 1/10/03 authorized construction of an office/sales area for Bright Ideas and warehouse addition to an existing miniwarehouse building.
- (5) A Zoning Use Permit Application to authorize the construction of a bus garage, installation of new signs, and installation of new fuel tanks and fuel dispensing equipment for the LEX Lincolnland Express operations on the subject property and the adjacent lot to the south (a total area of approximately 73,300 square feet) was received on March 23, 2011. The Zoning Administrator replied with a letter dated 4/14/11 in which continued operation of LEX was allowed but additional information was required prior to issuance of a conditional Zoning Compliance Certificate. No additional information was received and LEX Lincolnland Express eventually went out of business by March 2013. A subsequent company, Illini Express, also closed in the summer of 2013.
- B. The Petitioner, without required Zoning Use Permits, has made the following changes to the property, as indicated in a letter from John Hall, Zoning Director, to the Petitioner dated June 26, 2014:
 - (1) Modifying the existing office area that was formerly the offices of LEX by subdividing the interior space into at least four different spaces with their own exterior entrances; renting the new office spaces to various uses including a photographer, a musician, a painter, and a gymnasium (including converting storage area into the gymnasium);
 - (2) Adding a wrap-around covered porch to provide covering for the exterior entrances;
 - (3) Removing a portion of a bus maintenance garage.
 - (4) These changes are in addition to the change in lot area due to the fact that the adjacent lot (PIN 03-20-08-476-005) is no longer part of the property.
 - (5) It has also been reported that the Petitioner removed the curb along Tiffany Court without prior authorization from the Champaign Township Highway Commissioner.
- C. The Petitioner's Site Plan, received July 17, 2014, is a partial modification of the site (and building) plan from Zoning Use Permit #351-02-03 and therefore it does not accurately reflect the new uses on the subject property. An Annotated Site Plan has been prepared by

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 4 of 25

07/08/15 REVISED DRAFT

staff to highlight relevant evidence and discrepancies on the Site Plan received July 17, 2014. The Annotated Site Plan indicates the following:

- (1) Regarding the building on the subject property:
 - a. The building addition authorized in Zoning Use Permit #351-02-03 on 1/10/03 is indicated with hatching (diagonal lines) and labeled "NEW OFFICES- SALES ROOM" (totaling 4,950 square feet in area) that is still used as offices and "NEW STORAGE" (totaling 2,375 square feet in area) that has been converted to a gymnasium.
 - b. Note that a covered porch that is five feet deep has been added to the west and south sides of the building addition authorized in Zoning Use Permit #351-02-03. The addition of this covered porch was not authorized by Zoning Use Permit.
 - c. A portion of the building indicated as "warehouse" is attached to the east and south sides of the building addition authorized in Zoning Use Permit #351-02-03. The "warehouse" is a bus garage that was added for the former LEX use and it has never been authorized by Zoning Use Permit. The "warehouse" is 2,664 square feet in area. The "warehouse" occupies land area that was previously used for a loading berth and six parking spaces.
 - d. The middle portion of the building is indicated as "EXIST'G STOR" and was authorized in Zoning Use Permit # 166-96-01 on 6/17/96 and is 45 feet by 118 feet and totals 7,734 square feet in area. The original Zoning Use Permit application indicated 31 self-storage units in this portion of the building.
 - e. The eastern-most portion of the building was authorized in Zoning Use Permit # 219-86-02 on 8/7/86. This portion is 42 feet by 138 feet and totals 5,796 square feet and reportedly contains 22 self-storage units.
- (2) Regarding parking areas on the subject property:
 - a. The site (and building) plan from Zoning Use Permit #351-02-03 included a total of 40 parking spaces but there are areas where an additional 15 parking spaces could have been located for a total of 55 possible parking spaces.
 - b. The Site Plan received July 17, 2014, indicates a proposed 15 new parking spaces and 5 relocated parking spaces in addition to 28 existing parking spaces for a total of 48 parking spaces and no additional parking spaces could be located on the subject property.
- D. <u>A Revised Site Plan, received March 30, 2015, indicates the following uses and proposed parking spaces:</u>

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 5 of 25

- (1) <u>29 parking spaces around the eastern "Existing Storage" area, including 2 handicap accessible spaces;</u>
- (2) Existing upstairs storage, 1,500 square feet, in middle existing storage building;
- (3) <u>10 inside parking spaces in "New Garage", 2,805 square feet;</u>
- (4) <u>1 handicap accessible parking space south of the "New Garage";</u>
- (5) Upstairs executive office for President of Frazier Properties 300 square feet:
- (6) New 5 feet wide concrete handicap access to front offices;
- (7) 9 parking spaces on west side of west offices building;
- (8) Storm Sewer near Tiffany Court entrance;
- (9) <u>32 additional parking spaces on the property to the north of subject property, as per lease with property owner;</u>
- (10) More detailed floor plan of west office building, including measurements, uses, and number of employees for each establishment;
- (11) Cross-section of accessible parking for west offices.
- E. The structures on the property were constructed after the Zoning Ordinance was adopted by Champaign County on October 10, 1973.
- F. The required variance is as follows:
 - (1) Part A: Variance for 48 parking spaces in lieu of the minimum required <u>67</u> parking spaces as required by Section 7.4 of the Zoning Ordinance.
 - (2) Part B: Variance for a setback of 50 feet and a front yard of 20 feet between the principal building and Tiffany Court in lieu of the minimum required setback of 55 feet and the minimum required front yard of 25 feet as required by Section 5.3 of the Zoning Ordinance.
 - (3) Part C. Variance for parking 0 feet from the front property line in lieu of the minimum required 10 feet from the front property line as required by section 7.4.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 6 of 25

07/08/15 REVISED DRAFT

(4) Part D. Variance for allowing at least 19 off-street parking spaces on an adjacent lot in lieu of requiring all off-street parking spaces to be located on the same lot or tract of land as the use served, as required by Section 7.4.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.

GENERALLY REGARDING SPECIFIC ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS AND ZONING PROCEDURES

- 6. Regarding the proposed variance:
 - A. The following definitions from the *Zoning Ordinance* are especially relevant to the requested Variance (capitalized words are defined in the Ordinance):
 - (1) "BUILDING" is an enclosed STRUCTURE having a roof supported by columns, walls, arches, or other devices and used for the housing, shelter, or enclosure of persons, animal, and chattels.
 - (2) "CANOPY" is a non-retractable roof-like STRUCTURE of either a permanent or non-permanent nature which projects from the wall of a STRUCTURE, is supported above the surface of the ground by poles, posts, columns, beams, girders, or other similar framework attached to the ground, and overhangs or covers the public way or adjacent YARD or COURT.
 - (3) "COVERAGE" is the percentage of the LOT AREA covered by the BUILDING AREA.
 - (4) "FRONTAGE" is that portion of a LOT abutting a STREET or ALLEY.
 - (5) "LOT" is a designated parcel, tract or area of land established by PLAT, SUBDIVISION or as otherwise permitted by law, to be used, developed or built upon as a unit.
 - (6) "LOT LINE, FRONT" is a line dividing a LOT from a STREET or easement of ACCESS. On a CORNER LOT or a LOT otherwise abutting more than one STREET or easement of ACCESS only one such LOT LINE shall be deemed the FRONT LOT LINE.
 - (7) "LOT LINES" are the lines bounding a LOT.
 - (8) "PARKING GARAGE or LOT" is a LOT, COURT, YARD, or portion thereof used for the parking of vehicles containing one or more PARKING SPACES together with means of ACCESS to a public way.
 - (9) "PARKING SPACE" is a space ACCESSORY to a USE or STRUCTURE for the parking of one vehicle.

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 7 of 25

- (10) "SETBACK LINE" is the BUILDING RESTRICTION LINE nearest the front of and across a LOT establishing the minimum distance to be provided between a line of a STRUCTURE located on said LOT and the nearest STREET RIGHT -OF WAY line.
- (11) "STRUCTURE" is anything CONSTRUCTED or erected with a fixed location on the surface of the ground or affixed to something having a fixed location on the surface of the ground. Among other things, STRUCTURES include BUILDINGS, walls, fences, billboards, and SIGNS.
- (12) "STRUCTURE, MAIN or PRINCIPAL" is the STRUCTURE in or on which is conducted the main or principal USE of the LOT on which it is located.
- (13) "USE" is the specific purpose for which land, a STRUCTURE or PREMISES, is designed, arranged, intended, or for which it is or may be occupied or maintained. The term "permitted USE" or its equivalent shall not be deemed to include any NONCONFORMING USE.
- "WAREHOUSE" is a BUILDING within which raw materials, goods, or equipment including vehicles, are kept and wherein no manufacturing, assembly, construction, repair, sales or other activity is performed except for the packaging of goods and materials for shipment.
- (15) "WAREHOUSE, SELF-STORAGE" is a BUILDING or BUILDINGS containing multiple, independently accessible spaces where raw materials, goods or equipment, or personal goods including personal vehicles, are kept and wherein no other commercial or industrial activity occurs.
- (16) "YARD" is an OPEN SPACE, other than a COURT, of uniform width or depth on the same LOT with a STRUCTURE, lying between the STRUCTURE and the nearest LOT LINE and which is unoccupied and unobstructed from the surface of the ground upward except as may be specifically provided by the regulations and standards herein.
- (17) "YARD, FRONT" is a YARD extending the full width of a LOT and situated between the FRONT LOT LINE and the nearest line of a PRINCIPAL STRUCTURE located on said LOT. Where a LOT is located such that its REAR and FRONT LOT LINES each but a STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY both such YARDS shall be classified as front YARDS.
- B. The I-1, Light Industry DISTRICT is established to provide for storage and manufacturing USES not normally creating a nuisance discernible beyond its PROPERTY lines.

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 8 of 25

07/08/15 REVISED DRAFT

- C. Paragraph 9.1.9 D. of the *Zoning Ordinance* requires the ZBA to make the following findings for a variance:
 - (1) That the requirements of Paragraph 9.1.9 C. have been met and justify granting the variance. Paragraph 9.1.9 C. of the *Zoning Ordinance* states that a variance from the terms of the *Champaign County Zoning Ordinance* shall not be granted by the Board or the hearing officer unless a written application for a variance is submitted demonstrating all of the following:
 - a. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land or structure involved which are not applicable to other similarly situated land or structures elsewhere in the same district.
 - b. That practical difficulties or hardships created by carrying out the strict letter of the regulations sought to be varied prevent reasonable and otherwise permitted use of the land or structures or construction on the lot.
 - c. That the special conditions, circumstances, hardships, or practical difficulties do not result from actions of the Applicant.
 - d. That the granting of the variance is in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the *Ordinance*.
 - e. That the granting of the variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood, or otherwise detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare.
 - (2) That the variance is the minimum variation that will make possible the reasonable use of the land or structure, as required by subparagraph 9.1.9.D.2.
- D. Paragraph 7.4.1.C.2. requires that the number of PARKING SPACES for commercial establishments shall be the sum of the individual requirements of the various individual establishments computed separately in accordance with this section. Such PARKING SPACES for one such ESTABLISHMENT shall not be considered as providing the number of such PARKING SPACES for any other ESTABLISHMENT.
- E. Paragraph 7.4.1.C.3.b.ii. requires for outdoor areas, including non-permanent STRUCTURES, used for exhibit, educational, entertainment, recreational, or other purpose involving assemblage of patrons, one PARKING SPACE per three patrons based on the estimated number of patrons during peak attendance on a given day during said USE is in operation.
- F. Paragraph 7.4.1.C.3.e. requires ESTABLISHMENTS other than specified above: one such PARKING SPACE for every 200 square feet of floor area or portion thereof.
- G. Regarding the parking requirements for a self-storage warehouse:
 - (1) The Zoning Ordinance does not clearly establish parking requirements for selfstorage warehouses. Parking requirements for "commercial ESTABLISHMENTS"

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 9 of 25

are found in paragraph 7.4.1.C. of the Ordinance. Self-storage warehouse is not listed in subparagraph 7.4.1.C.3. and therefore a self-storage warehouse could be considered as an "ESTABLISHMENTS other than specified above" in subparagraph 7.4.1.C.3.e., in which case the requirement is one parking space for every 200 square feet of floor area.

- However, a self-storage warehouse is very similar to the warehouses found in modern office & light industry developments and previous Zoning Administrators have used the parking requirement for industrial uses that is found in paragraph 7.4.1.D. for those warehouses and also for self-storage warehouses. Paragraph 7.4.1.D. requires one parking space per each three employees based on the maximum number of employees during a work period. When applied to self-storage warehouses that standard that has been administered as "one space per three self-storage warehouse units" and that is the standard used to determine the required parking spaces for the self-storage warehouse portion of the subject property. The minimum required parking for the office portion is still 7.4.1.C.3.e., which is one parking space for every 200 square feet of floor area.
- H. Paragraph 7.4.1.D.1. requires for industrial uses that one space shall be provided for each three employees based upon the maximum number of persons employed during one work period during the day or night, plus one space for each VEHICLE used in the conduct of such USE. A minimum of one additional space shall be designated as a visitor PARKING SPACE.
- I. <u>Staff has calculated the following 67 minimum required parking spaces based on the Revised Site Plan received March 30, 2015:</u>
 - (1) For 53 storage units, one space per 3 units 18 spaces
 - (2) For 1,500 square feet of upstairs storage east of the "new garage", one space per 200 square feet 8 spaces
 - (3) For 2,805 square feet of the "new garage", one space per 200 square feet not applicable because this is a proposed parking area
 - (4) For 2,375 square feet of "new storage" (chiropractor gym space), one space per 200 square feet 12 spaces
 - (5) For 4,950 square feet of "new offices" on the west end, one space per 200 square feet 25 spaces
 - (6) For 450 square feet of upstairs "executive office", one space per 200 square feet 3 spaces
 - (7) Requirement of one visitor space 1 space

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 10 of 25

07/08/15 REVISED DRAFT

- J. Minimum FRONT SETBACK in the I-1 Light Industry District is established in Section 5.3 of the Zoning Ordinance as 55 feet.
- K. Minimum FRONT YARD in the I-1 Light Industry District is established in Section 5.3 of the Zoning Ordinance as 25 feet.
- L. <u>Minimum parking from the front property line in the I-1 Light Industry District is established in section 7.4.1 of the Zoning Ordinance as 10 feet.</u>
- M. All required off-street parking spaces must be located on the same lot or tract of land as the use served according to section 7.4.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.

GENERALLY REGARDING SPECIAL CONDITIONS THAT MAY BE PRESENT

- 7. Generally regarding the Zoning Ordinance requirement of a finding that special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land or structure involved which are not applicable to other similarly situated land or structures elsewhere in the same district:
 - A. The Petitioner has testified on the application, "Original plans do not allow but two 5 foot by 10 foot slabs thus limiting HCP and general accessibility to various entry and exit points. Covered porch protects sidewalk and entry points from environmental elements that could cause them to be hazardous, while improving esthetic view of the neighborhood."
 - B. Regarding Part A of the Variance, for 48 parking spaces in lieu of the minimum required 67 parking spaces:
 - (1) There appears to be no additional area on the subject property for more parking spaces. The area surrounding the existing buildings is not adequate to accommodate any significant parking because of the minimum separation requirement between the property line and a parking space. A Variance from the minimum separation could be requested, but it would still not add enough parking on-site.
 - (2) The 2,664 square feet "warehouse" shown in the Site Plan dated July 17, 2014 is a bus garage that was added for the former LEX use and it has never been authorized by Zoning Use Permit. The "warehouse" occupies land area that was previously used for a loading berth and six parking spaces. The Revised Site Plan received on March 30, 2015 indicates this area as a "garage" that totals 2,805 square feet.
 - (3) Testimony by adjacent landowners and one business owner who rents space in the subject building indicates that not all parking spaces on the subject property are reliably available for parking due primarily to inadequate access that is quite often blocked.

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 11 of 25

- (4) Adjacent landowners have testified that vehicles parking on the west side of the subject property quite often park over the public sidewalk.
- C. Regarding Part B of the Variance, for a setback of 50 feet and a front yard of 20 feet between the principal building and Tiffany Court in lieu of the minimum required setback of 55 feet and the minimum required front yard of 25 feet:
 - (1) The Petitioner, without a Zoning Use Permit, constructed a five foot wide covered porch over a sidewalk on the west side of the existing offices and sales room. Without this covered porch, the front yard would be 25 feet and the setback from the street centerline would be 55 feet, both compliant with the Zoning Ordinance.
- D. Regarding Part C of the Variance, for parking 0 feet from the front property line in lieu of the minimum required 10 feet:
 - (1) The existing parking lot on the west side of the offices was constructed in a manner different from the approved site plan from Zoning Use Permit #351-02-03. That approved site plan included five parallel spaces adjacent to the offices, with no 5 foot covered walkway between them. Had they been constructed as per the approved site plan and without the walkway, there would have been 15 feet of space between the parallel parking and the front property line, thus requiring no variance.
- E. Regarding Part D of the Variance, for allowing at least 19 off-street parking spaces on an adjacent lot in lieu of requiring all off-street parking spaces to be located on the same lot or tract of land as the use served:
 - (1) The subject property does not have sufficient area for the required minimum parking spaces.
 - (2) On March 1, 2015, Mr. Frazier leased parking space from Isaacs Properties on adjacent property 306 Tiffany Court. The gravel area on the southwest corner of the Isaacs property holds 32 vehicles according to Mr. Frazier. The contract ends on February 28, 2016, but can be extended at Mr. Frazier's option until February 28, 2018.
 - The leased parking is within the City of Champaign corporate limits. Champaign Planning Department was consulted to see if a long-term parking lease on a property within the City of Champaign would require subdivision approval by the City in addition to any applicable County regulations. Rob Kowalski, Assistant Director of Planning and Development for the City of Champaign, responded in an email received May 1, 2015 that City subdivision approval would not be necessary if Mr. Frazier decides to lease spaces from his neighbor; however, the neighbor would still have to meet City regulations for parking (see Attachment F from

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 12 of 25

07/08/15 REVISED DRAFT

Supplemental Memo 1 dated May 6, 2015). Rob Kowalski sent a follow-up email on June 2, 2015 (Attachment B of this memo) indicating that the owner to the north has sufficient parking for their own use in addition to what they are leasing to Mr. Frazier. He recommended adding a Special Condition that any required parking provided off-site and in the City shall be in compliance with the requirements of the City of Champaign Zoning Ordinance for off-street parking, including parking on an improved surface. Staff has added this proposed Special Condition to this revised Summary of Evidence.

GENERALLY REGARDING ANY PRACTICAL DIFFICULTIES OR HARDSHIPS RELATED TO CARRYING OUT THE STRICT LETTER OF THE ORDINANCE

- 8. Generally regarding the Zoning Ordinance requirement of a finding that practical difficulties or hardships related to carrying out the strict letter of the regulations sought to be varied prevent reasonable and otherwise permitted use of the land or structures or construction on the lot:
 - A. The Petitioner has testified on the application, "Adhering to strict letter of provision could limit gainful earnings of rental space, by limiting accessibility of patrons of Frazier Properties. Without upgrading and maintaining property could affect property value for entire subdivision."
 - B. Regarding Part A of the Variance, for 48 parking spaces in lieu of the minimum required 67 parking spaces:
 - (1) Without the proposed Variance, the Petitioner would have to demolish at least 3,000 square feet of existing buildings and/or covered areas and/or vacate all second floor (upstairs) areas to meet the parking requirements.
 - C. Regarding Part B of the Variance, for a setback of 50 feet and a front yard of 20 feet between the principal building and Tiffany Court in lieu of the minimum required setback of 55 feet and the minimum required front yard of 25 feet:
 - (1) Without the proposed Variance, the Petitioner would have to demolish the existing porch to meet the setback and front yard requirements, and that would not provide enough area for the required parking spaces.
 - D. Regarding Part C of the Variance, for parking 0 feet from the front property line in lieu of the minimum required 10 feet:
 - (1) Without the proposed Variance, the Petitioner would have to either provide no adjacent parking for the office tenants and their clients or reconfigure the parking to provide fewer spaces than what is currently available.
 - E. Regarding Part D of the Variance, for allowing at least 19 off-street parking spaces on an adjacent lot in lieu of requiring all off-street parking spaces to be located on the same lot or tract of land as the use served:

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 13 of 25

- (1) Without the proposed Variance, the property would have insufficient on-site parking for the current tenants and uses. Tenants and clients would be required to park illegally on Tiffany Court or park without permission on adjacent lots.
- F. The Zoning Ordinance does not clearly establish parking requirements for self-storage warehouses.

Parking requirements for "commercial ESTABLISHMENTS" are found in paragraph 7.4.1.C. of the Ordinance. Self-storage warehouse is not listed in subparagraph 7.4.1C.3. and therefore a self-storage warehouse could be considered as an "ESTABLISHMENTS other than specified above" in subparagraph 7.4.1.C.3.e., in which case the requirement is one parking space for every 200 square feet of floor area.

However, a self-storage warehouse is very similar to the warehouses found in modern office & light industry developments and previous Zoning Administrators have used the parking requirement for industrial uses that is found in paragraph 7.4.1.D. for those warehouses and also for self-storage warehouses. Paragraph 7.4.1.D. requires one parking space per each three employees based on the maximum number of employees during a work period. When applied to self-storage warehouses that standard that has been administered as "one space per three self-storage warehouse units" and that is the standard used to determine the required parking spaces for the self-storage warehouse portion of the subject property. The minimum required parking for the office portion is still 7.4.1.C.3.e., which is one parking space for every 200 square feet of floor area.

GENERALLY PERTAINING TO WHETHER OR NOT THE PRACTICAL DIFFICULTIES OR HARDSHIPS RESULT FROM THE ACTIONS OF THE APPLICANT

- 9. Generally regarding the Zoning Ordinance requirement for a finding that the special conditions, circumstances, hardships, or practical difficulties do not result from the actions of the Applicant:
 - A. The Petitioner has testified on the application, "With the upgrades, I would say that I have not caused any difficulties or hardships to other properties or myself."
 - B. The nearest building on neighboring property is approximately 125 feet from the shared property line to the south.

GENERALLY PERTAINING TO WHETHER OR NOT THE VARIANCE IS IN HARMONY WITH THE GENERAL PURPOSE AND INTENT OF THE ORDINANCE

- 10. Generally regarding the Zoning Ordinance requirement for a finding that the granting of the variance is in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the Ordinance:
 - A. The Petitioner has testified on the application, "By granting this variance and permitting upgrades, it will be the final face of construction in the west yard. With the exception of preventive maintenance will be no more need to improve property in that area."

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 14 of 25

07/08/15 REVISED DRAFT

- B. Regarding the requested Variance:
 - (1) Regarding Part A of the Variance, for 48 parking spaces in lieu of the minimum required <u>67</u> parking spaces: the requested variance provides <u>19</u> fewer parking spaces, equivalent to <u>72</u>% of the minimum required, for a variance of <u>28</u>%.
 - (2) Regarding Part B of the Variance, for a setback of 50 feet and a front yard of 20 feet between the principal building and Tiffany Court in lieu of the minimum required setback of 55 feet and the minimum required front yard of 25 feet: the requested variance for the setback is 5 feet less, or 91% of the minimum required, for a variance of 9%; the front yard is 5 feet less, or 80% of the minimum required, for a variance of 20%.
 - (3) Regarding Part C of the Variance, for parking 0 feet from the front property line in lieu of the minimum required 10 feet: the requested variance is 100%.
 - (4) Regarding Part D of the Variance, for allowing at least 19 off-street parking spaces on an adjacent lot in lieu of requiring all off-street parking spaces to be located on the same lot or tract of land as the use served: the requested variance is for 48 of the 67 required spaces, or 72% of the required spaces, for a variance of 28%.

C. Regarding Part A of the Variance:

- (1) The Zoning Ordinance does not clearly state the considerations that underlie the parking requirements. Presumably the parking space requirements are intended to ensure that employees, customers, and deliverers of goods and services have ample room to park safely in consideration of pedestrians and other roadway users.
- (2) In a memo to the Petitioner dated December 15, 2014, John Hall indicated that "if there are more or less than 3 company vehicles, the number of required spaces will change and if any company vehicles are parked indoors the number of required spaces would be reduced accordingly."
- (3) Eighteen of the <u>67</u> required parking spaces are for use by patrons of the self-storage units. One can reasonably assume that all patrons would rarely enter the property at the same time, which would result in less demand for the available parking spaces.

D. Regarding Part B of the Variance:

- (1) The Zoning Ordinance does not clearly state the considerations that underlie the front setback and front yard requirements. Presumably the front setback and front yard are intended to ensure the following:
 - a. Adequate separation from roads.
 - b. Allow adequate area for road expansion and right-of-way acquisition.
 - c. Parking, where applicable.

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 15 of 25

- (2) The subject property is on a cul-de-sac with generally lower traffic volumes and speed limits than other minor roads. No further right-of-way acquisition is anticipated.
- E. Regarding Part C of the Variance:
 - (1) The Zoning Ordinance does not clearly state the considerations that underlie prohibiting parking within 10 feet of the front property line. Presumably the parking regulation is intended to ensure the following:
 - a. Safer access to and from the property for both road users and clients;
 - b. Adequate room for infrastructure maintenance and expansion.
- F. Regarding Part D of the Variance:
 - (1) The Zoning Ordinance does not clearly state the considerations that underlie required on-site parking. Presumably the parking regulation is intended to ensure that there is a clear distinction for each property's parking requirements and available spaces on each property.
 - a. With the 32 spaces rented on the adjacent property, the total number of parking spaces would be 80, which exceeds 67.
 - b. <u>If parking perpendicular to the existing building is prohibited, the number of parking spaces provided reduces to 76.</u>
 - c. The "New Garage" is proposed to include 10 parking spaces but no parking layout has been provided and it seems unlikely that there could actually be 10 parking spaces in that garage and 6 outdoor parking spaces.
 - d. <u>Testimony in the public hearing has also indicated that parking on the eastern part of the subject property is not always easy to access.</u>
- G. The requested variance is not prohibited by the *Zoning Ordinance*.

GENERALLY PERTAINING TO THE EFFECTS OF THE REQUESTED VARIANCE ON THE NEIGHBORHOOD AND THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE

- 11. Generally regarding the Zoning Ordinance requirement for a finding that the granting of the variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood, or otherwise detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare:
 - A. The Petitioner has testified on the application: "Factors that tend to insure that variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise to the public health safety or welfare are: 1) We will not be asking for parking spaces to change or impede into public roadway, just move them 5 feet to the west (that still maintains 300 sq. ft. as required and 10 foot setback requirement) and 2) 5 feet dedicated to covered porch will insure safe HCP, general public and patrons accessibility to Frazier Properties."

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 16 of 25

07/08/15 REVISED DRAFT

- B. The Township Highway Commissioner has been notified of this variance and had the following comments:
 - (1) At the February 12, 2015 public hearing, Mr. Keith Padgett, Champaign Township Highway Commissioner, stated that from sidewalk to sidewalk is the jurisdiction of Champaign Township. He is concerned that there has been approximately 100 feet of the barrier curb removed without permission, notice of removal, or granting of permit therefore Champaign Township has lost about 100 feet of barrier curb.
 - (2) <u>In an email received April 30, 2015, Mr. Padgett indicated the following:</u>
 - a. Champaign Township Road District has no problem with parking spaces on Mr. Frazier's property as long as they do not extend over the pedestrian sidewalk.
 - b. The missing curb and the driving over unprotected utilities in the area between the sidewalk and the street is still an issue. He suggested that six inches of concrete poured in this area would be acceptable.
 - c. <u>He would like to see the Township reimbursed for the replacement of the curb at some time since the Township Road District did not remove it nor did they approve its removal.</u>
- C. The Scott Fire Protection District has been notified of this variance but no comments have been received.
- D. City of Champaign Planning Department was consulted to see if a long-term parking lease on a property within the City of Champaign would require subdivision approval by the city in addition to any applicable County regulations. Rob Kowalski, Assistant Director of Planning and Development for the City of Champaign, responded in an email received May 1, 2015 that city subdivision approval would not be necessary if Mr. Frazier decides to lease spaces from his neighbor; however, the neighbor would still have to meet city regulations for parking (see Supplemental Memo 1, Attachment F).
- E. The nearest building on neighboring property is approximately 125 feet from the shared property line.
- F. Several adjacent business owners testified at the February 12, 2015 public hearing:
 - (1) Mr. Lloyd Allen owns the property at 4400 West Springfield Avenue, beside Mr. Frazier's property. He is opposed to approving the variances because of parking concerns, Mr. Frazier cutting sidewalk and curbs out, and removing "No Parking" signs. Mr. Allen submitted photos of parking issues at the hearing, which can be found in Attachment E.

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED
Page 17 of 25

- (2) Mr. Steve Koester owns 305 Tiffany Court, north of Mr. Frazier's property, and also owns the property along the south side of Mr. Frazier's property with Mr. Caleb Burton. He stated concerns about access to his own property by emergency vehicles, delivery trucks and employees. He also stated that Mr. Frazier's customers who park on the west side of the property cover the sidewalk and sometimes park in the cul-de-sac, which is a no parking zone. He stated that Mr. Frazier does not have enough land to support what he has going on there. Mr. Koester stated that he has had many cases of people parking on his south lot, south of Mr. Frazier's property, to go to the mini-warehouses and Mr. Frazier's garbage service parks on Mr. Koester's property to dump Mr. Frazier's dumpster. Mr. Koester stated that he just acquired the property to the south of Mr. Frazier's building and the property was really cheap. Mr. Koester stated that the reason why he was able to purchase the property at such a low price was due to the history of Mr. Frazier's property but the property was also available for Mr. Frazier's purchase so that he could expand. Mr. Koester stated that the closing price for the property was \$125,000 and Mr. Frazier's best move would have been to have purchased the property to the south so that he could run the kind of operation that Mr. Frazier proposes because it would have given him adequate area to meet the County's parking requirements and would not need the requested variances. Mr. Koester stated that he will not lease the property to Mr. Frazier. Mr. Koester submitted photos of parking issues at the hearing, which can be found in Attachment E.
- (3) Mr. Caleb Burton, whose business is located at 314 Tiffany Court, has concerns about the 10 foot drive Mr. Frazier has for his property. He stated that he has seen vehicles blocking the front yard, making Mr. Frazier's property inaccessible and that Mr. Frazier's clients use Mr. Burton's service entrance daily. Mr. Burton is also concerned about how Mr. Frazier poured concrete that drains south and nothing was done to taper the drainage or direct it to the street therefore it drains onto Mr. Burton's property.
- (4) Mr. Andrew Tunstall operates a chiropractic, exercise and rehabilitation facility in one of the offices at the west end of Mr. Frazier's property. He stated that his clients have complained about the parking. His clients cannot access the area Mr. Frazier identified as overflow parking back by the mini storage units.

His actual gym site is 2,375 square feet in area and he has two additional therapy rooms and a reception area that take up an additional 1,025 square feet. On a typical slow night between 3 and 6 PM he will see 4 to 6 people but on a busy night he may see up to 16 people; he has the operation set up to accommodate up to 24 people at one time.

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 18 of 25

07/08/15 REVISED DRAFT

GENERALLY REGARDING ANY OTHER JUSTIFICATION FOR THE VARIANCE

- 12. Generally regarding and other circumstances which justify the Variance:
 - A. The Petitioner has testified on the application: "Upgrades and allowing of variance will provide strong and ensured growth to Stahly subdivision by providing a safe and inviting place for small business to grow and contribute to the local economy."

GENERALLY REGARDING PROPOSED SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

- 13. Regarding proposed special conditions of approval:
 - A. The Petitioner shall maintain the required 67 parking spaces either by lease or by purchase of adjacent land unless the Zoning Department determines that a different number of spaces are required. If parking spaces are leased, a copy of the signed lease must be provided annually to the Zoning Department and offsite parking spaces shall be continuously available at all times. Failure to comply with this special condition will result in enforcement action.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that adequate parking is provided for the subject property.

B. The existing and proposed parking plan on the west side of the property results in parked vehicles backing onto Tiffany Court, which is a public safety hazard. No vehicles may park on the west side of the Frazier building that requires them to back onto Tiffany Court except as may be required in emergencies.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that safety is a priority in designing parking for the subject property.

C. Within one year of Final Determination in Case 792-V-14, the property owner must reconstruct the curb that was removed and must submit all necessary engineering documentation that would be required for meeting the original design and specifications in the Stahly Subdivision.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that the curb is restored so that the street right of way functions according to its original design.

D. A Change of Use Permit must be approved for each change of use on the subject property.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that only those uses authorized in the I-1 Light Industry District can be located on the subject property.

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 19 of 25

E. Any required parking provided off-site and in the City shall be in compliance with the requirements of the City of Champaign Zoning Ordinance for off-street parking, including parking on an improved surface.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that the property is in compliance with both City and County Ordinances.

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED

07/08/15 REVISED DRAFT

Page 20 of 25

DOCUMENTS OF RECORD

- 1. Variance Application received on July 17, 2014, with attachments:
 - A Site Plan
- 2. Preliminary Memorandum dated January 22, 2015 with attachments:
 - A Case Maps (Location, Land Use, Zoning)
 - B Approved Site Plan for ZUPA # 351-02-03
 - C Site Plan received July 17, 2014
 - D Annotated Site Plan
 - E Images packet dated December 30, 2014
 - F Draft Summary of Evidence, Finding of Fact, and Final Determination
- 3. Photos submitted during February 12, 2015 ZBA hearing from Lloyd Allen and Steve Koester
- 4. Email from Robert Frazier received March 18, 2015, with attachments:
 - A Signed lease for parking spaces
 - B Image of parking area
- 5. Revised Site Plan received March 30, 2015
- 6. <u>Email from Keith Padgett, Champaign Township Highway Commissioner received April 30, 2015</u>
- 7. Email from Rob Kowalski, City of Champaign, received May 1, 2015
- 8. Paving Plan and Profile for Stahly Subdivision, received August 12, 1986
- 9. Supplemental Memorandum #1 dated May 6, 2015, with attachments:
 - A Email from Robert Frazier received March 18, 2015, with attachments
 - B Revised Site Plan received March 30, 2015
 - C Email from Keith Padgett, Champaign Township Highway Commissioner received April 30, 2015
 - D Approved minutes from February 12, 2015 ZBA hearing
 - E Photos submitted during February 12, 2015 ZBA hearing from Lloyd Allen and Steve Koester
 - F Email from Rob Kowalski, City of Champaign, received May 1, 2015
 - G Paving Plan and Profile for Stahly Subdivision, received August 12, 1986
 - H Revised Draft Summary of Evidence dated May 6, 2015

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 21 of 25

- 10. Supplemental Memorandum #2 dated July 8, 2015, with attachments:
 - A Revised annotated Summary of Evidence dated July 8, 2015
 - B Email from Rob Kowalski, City of Champaign, received June 2, 2015
 - C Revised Site Plan received March 30, 2015
 - D Annotated Diagram of West Parking Area dated July 8, 2015
 - E Site Plan received July 17, 2014

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 22 of 25

07/08/15 REVISED DRAFT

FINDINGS OF FACT

A.

From the documents of record and the testimony and exhibits received at the public hearing for zoning case 792-V-14 held on January 29, 2014, May 14, 2015, and July 16, 2015 the Zoning Board of Appeals of Champaign County finds that:

Special conditions and circumstances {DO / DO NOT} exist which are peculiar to the land or structure involved, which are not applicable to other similarly situated land and structures elsewhere in the same district because:
Practical difficulties or hardships created by carrying out the strict letter of the regulations sought to be varied {WILL / WILL NOT} prevent reasonable or otherwise permitted use of the land or structure or construction because:
The special conditions, circumstances, hardships, or practical difficulties {DO / DO NOT} result from actions of the applicant because:
The requested variance {SUBJECT TO THE PROPOSED CONDITION} {IS / IS NOT} in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the Ordinance because:
The requested variance {SUBJECT TO THE PROPOSED CONDITION} {WILL / WILL NOT} be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare because:
The requested variance {SUBJECT TO THE PROPOSED CONDITION} {IS / IS NOT} the minimum variation that will make possible the reasonable use of the land/structure because:

The Petitioner shall maintain the required 67 parking spaces either by lease or by

purchase of adjacent land unless the Zoning Department determines that a different

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 23 of 25

number of spaces are required. If parking spaces are leased, a copy of the signed lease must be provided annually to the Zoning Department and offsite parking spaces shall be continuously available at all times. Failure to comply with this special condition will result in enforcement action.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that adequate parking is provided for the subject property.

B. The existing and proposed parking plan on the west side of the property results in parked vehicles backing onto Tiffany Court, which is a public safety hazard. No vehicles may park on the west side of the Frazier building that requires them to back onto Tiffany Court except as may be required in emergencies.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that safety is a priority in designing parking for the subject property.

C. Within one year of Final Determination in Case 792-V-14, the property owner must reconstruct the curb that was removed and must submit all necessary engineering documentation that would be required for meeting the original design and specifications in the Stahly Subdivision.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that the curb is restored so that the street right of way functions according to its original design.

D. A Change of Use Permit must be approved for each change of use on the subject property.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that only those uses authorized in the I-1 Light Industry District can be located on the subject property.

E. Any required parking provided off-site and in the City shall be in compliance with the requirements of the City of Champaign Zoning Ordinance for off-street parking, including parking on an improved surface.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that the property is in compliance with both City and County Ordinances.

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 24 of 25

07/08/15 REVISED DRAFT

FINAL DETERMINATION

The Champaign County Zoning Board of Appeals finds that, based upon the application, testimony, and other evidence received in this case, that the requirements for approval in Section 9.1.9.C {HAVE/HAVE NOT} been met, and pursuant to the authority granted by Section 9.1.6.B of the Champaign County Zoning Ordinance, the Zoning Board of Appeals of Champaign County determines that:

The Variance requested in Case **792-V-14** is hereby **[GRANTED / GRANTED WITH CONDITIONS/DENIED]** to the petitioner **Robert Frazier** to authorize the following variances in the I-1 Light Industry Zoning District:

- Part A. Variance for 48 parking spaces in lieu of the minimum required <u>67</u> parking spaces as required by Section 7.4 of the Zoning Ordinance.
- Part B. Variance for a setback of 50 feet and a front yard of 20 feet between the principal building and Tiffany Court in lieu of the minimum required setback of 55 feet and the minimum required front yard of 25 feet as required by Section 5.3 of the Zoning Ordinance.
- Part C. Variance for parking 0 feet from the front property line in lieu of the minimum required 10 feet from the front property line as required by section 7.4.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.
- Part D. Variance for allowing at least 19 off-street parking spaces on an adjacent lot in lieu of requiring all off-street parking spaces to be located on the same lot or tract of land as the use served, as required by Section 7.4.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.

{SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITION(S):}

A. The Petitioner shall maintain the required 67 parking spaces either by lease or by purchase of adjacent land unless the Zoning Department determines that a different number of spaces are required. If parking spaces are leased, a copy of the signed lease must be provided annually to the Zoning Department and offsite parking spaces shall be continuously available at all times. Failure to comply with this special condition will result in enforcement action.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that adequate parking is provided for the subject property.

B. The existing and proposed parking plan on the west side of the property results in parked vehicles backing onto Tiffany Court, which is a public safety hazard. No vehicles may park on the west side of the Frazier building that requires them to back onto Tiffany Court except as may be required in emergencies.

Case 792-V-14 REACTIVATED Page 25 of 25

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that safety is a priority in designing parking for the subject property.

C. Within one year of Final Determination in Case 792-V-14, the property owner must reconstruct the curb that was removed and must submit all necessary engineering documentation that would be required for meeting the original design and specifications in the Stahly Subdivision.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that the curb is restored so that the street right of way functions according to its original design.

D. A Change of Use Permit must be approved for each change of use on the subject property.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that only those uses authorized in the I-1 Light Industry District can be located on the subject property.

E. Any required parking provided off-site and in the City shall be in compliance with the requirements of the City of Champaign Zoning Ordinance for off-street parking, including parking on an improved surface.

The special condition stated above is to ensure the following:

To ensure that the property is in compliance with both City and County Ordinances.

The foregoing is an accurate and complete record of the Findings and Determination of the Zoning Board of Appeals of Champaign County.

Q.	lG.	NΠ	ΗH	٦.
O.	W.	LNJ	الانا	J,

Eric Thorsland, Chair Champaign County Zoning Board of Appeals

ATTEST:

Secretary to the Zoning Board of Appeals Date

Susan Chavarria

From:

Kowalski, Rob <rob.kowalski@ci.champaign.il.us>

Sent:

Tuesday, June 02, 2015 1:20 PM

To:

Susan Chavarria

Subject:

Re: 310 Tiffany Court (formerly LEX) property

Sorry about that. Yes, I was referring to 306 Tiffany but thought it was SK Fence. Thanks.

On Tue, Jun 2, 2015 at 12:45 PM, Susan Chavarria <schavarr@co.champaign.il.us> wrote:

Thanks Rob. To be clear, Frazier is leasing space from Isaac Properties (306 Tiffany), not SK Fence (305 Tiffany). Were you referring to 306 Tiffany in your response below?

I will run the proposed special condition by John, but I'm sure it won't be a problem to include it.

Thanks, Susan

From: Kowalski, Rob [mailto:rob.kowalski@ci.champaign.il.us]

Sent: Tuesday, June 02, 2015 12:31 PM

To: Susan Chavarria

Subject: Re: 310 Tiffany Court (formerly LEX) property

Susan,

This won't be a problem. The SK Fence property would require 25 parking spaces based on the parking standard for an industrial land use (one space per 1,000 square feet). They easily have this alongside the two existing buildings on the property. Keep in mind, the City's Zoning Ordinance requires that off-street parking be on an improved surface so there may have to be some paving done to provide the parking for the neighbor as shown on the diagram you attached. I would recommend a condition to your case that any required parking provided off-site and in the City shall be in compliance with the requirements of the Champaign Zoning Ordinance for off-street parking including parking on an improved surface. That would help us out a lot. In fact, it might be most helpful to SK Fence because if we have to enforce on parking on an unimproved surface, it would be on the property owner (SK Fence) and not the ones actually parking there.

Thanks.

Rob

On Mon, Jun 1, 2015 at 10:55 AM, Susan Chavarria < schavarr@co.champaign.il.us > wrote:

Hi Rob,

Mr. Frazier's parking lease is with Isaacs Properties, 306 Tiffany Court (to the north of Mr. Frazier's property). I have enclosed the lease and a rough diagram of the parking. Would it be possible for your staff to see if 306 Tiffany still has sufficient parking for its own use according to your ordinance, even with Mr. Frazier's leased space? His hearing is not until July 16, so if I could hear back on this by the end of June, I would appreciate it.

Thanks, Susan

£

Annotated Parking Diagram - West Parking Area

Case 792-V-14 July 16, 2015









